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Strategic Report
The year April 2019 to March 2020 has seen Magenta Living respond to a number of
significant challenges and continue on its journey to transform the organisation with the
additional challenge late in the financial year of managing the business through the Covid-19
global pandemic.
On 1 April 2019, Wirral Partnership Homes legally changed its company name to Magenta
Living which had formerly been its trading name.
The transformation plan, The Magenta Way, was developed in response to the outcome of
the In-depth Assessment (IDA) of May/June 2018 to create a roadmap in order to return to
G1 status. The IDA required improvements be made to risk management particularly around
stress testing the business plan, mitigation planning and clearer financial reporting. It was
however noted at the time that Magenta Living is financially robust and accordingly it
retained its V1 rating and the regulator did not express any concerns over our compliance
with the financial viability standard.
The regulator published a “Regulatory Notice” in April 2019 in response to a breach of the
Home Standard relating to our five-year electrical installation inspection programme and our
inability to provide records that necessary works had taken place to a significant number of
properties. As a consequence of this breach it was deemed that there was the potential for
serious detriment to Magenta Living tenants. Whilst a remedial programme was undertaken
immediately, an action plan was put in place to address the underlying causes, including a
review of data integrity and management. Savills and our internal auditors, BDO were
appointed to provide assurance to the Board and the Regulator that lessons learned from
this experience and the necessary measures to ensure data integrity were put in place. This
resulted in company-wide changes in staffing, processes and procedures which required
significant additional resources.
With regard to the IDA and the requirements identified to return to G1 status, an Interim
Executive Director of Finance was appointed following the departure of the former Deputy
Chief Executive Finance Director. He ensured that the action plan was delivered and that a
new risk management framework was put in place fully endorsed and understood by the
Board. This framework links strategic risks with specific control measures and mitigations
and is very clear on how the various risks link together and the potential impact on the
finances of the business.
To tackle the issues relating to health and safety compliance and ensure that the
requirements of the Home Standard are met, an Interim Executive Director of Assets was
appointed and a restructure of executive portfolios followed which brought together asset
management, compliance and Building Services. Many of the issues related to the
inadequacy of the various data management systems utilised throughout the business and
their inability to robustly transfer data from one to the other. This impacted widely and it
proved necessary to appoint an Interim Director of IT to lead on improvements.
The appointment of the Interim Directors ensured that the pace of change was rapid and
dovetailed with the Magenta Way action plan. Ultimately, the interims were replaced by
permanent members of the Executive and the Senior Leadership Team following significant
restructures in the Finance team, the wider Asset Management Team to ensure that the
necessary skills are in place to build Magenta Living and create a sustainable business.
Clearly this structure has significant resource implications for the future particularly in the
short term until anticipated efficiencies are made. It is envisaged that this level of resource
will be required into 2020/21 and that it will be 2021/22 before realistically the skills, systems
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and processes supported by modern, fit for purpose technology begin to generate significant
savings in expenditure.
It is also worth adding at this point that the health and safety compliance review has
identified significant work programmes and that this has added to unforeseen expenditure in
the financial year.
The Covid-19 pandemic has had a major impact on the Country and many businesses have
suffered, in some cases irreparable damage. However, Magenta Living has continued to
perform well in terms of rent collection and risk management with essential services
continuing to be provided to our customers. It took less than two weeks for all staff who
could work from home to be in a position to do so. Those who could not were encouraged to
volunteer in our local communities and this was well received. It was not necessary to
furlough any staff. In many ways it was fortunate that the new structures and key personnel
were in place to deal with this unforeseen and major risk to the business.
The Board of Magenta Living is pleased to present its report together with the audited
financial statements of Magenta Living (ML or the Company), a company limited by
guarantee, and Magenta Living Group (the Group) for the year ended 31 March 2020. These
statements are prepared in line with FRS 102 and use the descriptions and naming
conventions associated with these accounting standards. The Group consists of the
Company and one dormant subsidiary, Wirral Partnership Homes (Building Services) Limited
and two trading subsidiaries, Wirral Partnership Homes (WPH) (Developments) Limited and
Hilbre Projects LLP (build for direct sale). Further to this the Group has an involvement in a
joint venture – Bamboo Estates LLP (private rented sector vehicle with Torus Housing
Group). The interrelationship between the various parts of the group is shown below.

A reduced detail version of the company structure diagram
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Strategic Report
Magenta Living (ML) commenced trading on 7th February 2005 in order to facilitate the
transfer of homes from the Metropolitan Borough of Wirral. The Company’s principal activity
is the provision and management of social housing. The Company is a not for profit
organisation and operates throughout the Borough of Wirral with its head office at Hamilton
Street in Birkenhead. Following the transfer of the trade and assets into ML effective from 1
April 2008, Wirral Partnership Homes (Building Services) Limited is now dormant. WPH
(Developments) Limited was incorporated in December 2011 with the principal activity being
the construction of new properties for ML. WPH (Developments) Limited commenced trading
as from 1st April 2013. Bamboo Estates began trading during 2016-17 with limited activity
and Hilbre Projects began trading from 1st April 2017.
Table 1 shows the mix of housing stock in ownership and management of the company:

Table 1
Social Housing

Year End

Year End

2020

2019

General Needs:
Opening Stock
Acquisitions
New Build

10,887

11,064

-

-

39

20

(66)

(77)

Reclassification

-

(10)

Demolitions

-

(66)

Property Sales

Transfer to Bamboo
Total General Needs

(3)

(44)

10,857

10,887

Supported Housing
Opening Stock

1,763

1,755

Reclassification

-

10

Acquisitions

-

-

New Build

-

-

Sold
Total Supported Housing

-

(2)

1,763

1,763

17

14

Low Cost Home Ownership
Opening stock
Acquisitions

9

3

Property Sales

(1)

-

Total Low cost home ownership

25

17

12,645

12,667

Total Housing Stock
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Strategic Report
Business and Financial Review
The Board reports a Group operating surplus of £2.9 million (2019: £12.2 million). The Group
has continued to invest in both its existing stock and undertake new developments for
affordable housing to rent.
At the year end, the Group’s total unrestricted reserves amounted to £115.5 million (2019:
£108.7 million). These reserves are not cash reserves but rather refer to the total net asset
position of the company at the year end.
During 2019/20 £2.3 million (2019: £1.9 million) of expenditure on housing properties was
capitalised with a further £11.9 million (2019: £11.0 million) being charged to income and
expenditure.
The Group’s turnover for the year ended 31 March 2020 was £65.7 million (2019: £67.3
million). This was principally from lettings £60.5 million (2019: £61.1 million) and other
activities £4.6 million (2019: £5.7 million).
Operating costs totalled £62.0 million (2019: £59.6 million), that included routine and
planned maintenance of £16.7 million (2019: £15.7 million) and £14.2 million (2019: £12.9
million), was invested in the 2019/20 Improvement Programme, both capital and revenue
expenditure, as detailed in Note 12. Management and Service costs in the year totalled
£23.5 million (2019: £21.8 million), of this £3.9 million related to pension service costs (2019:
£4.9 million).
Reserves are retained at levels that allow the association to continue to provide the services
that the reserves are intended to support while managing the risks associated with long term
expenditure plans. The budget and business plans are approved each year and are set to
achieve this. The level of reserves is monitored throughout the year. The Group held
£115,515k in the Income and Expenditure reserve as at 31 March 2020 and £Nil in
designated reserves. Free reserves, i.e. unrestricted funds excluding tangible fixed assets
net of grant, were (£87,850k) at 31 March 2020, as (£229,341k) is represented by tangible
fixed assets and can only be realised by their disposal.
In relation to property sales, a Right to Buy sharing agreement exists with the Council which
was agreed at transfer. With reference to this agreement from receipts of £1,618k (2019:
£2,590k), £493k (2019: £771k) is due to the Council, £1k was utilised to pay off rent arrears,
with the Company keeping the balance of £1,124k (2019: £1,819k). The receipts were
generated from the sale of 37 (2019: 60) properties.
Magenta Living has continued to develop throughout a period of significant change in the
economic climate of social housing development. We have built a wide range of properties
including specialist accommodation for older people and people with disabilities and a small
number of shops. Table 2 illustrates the 836 homes we have built since transfer. The
majority 681 are in Wirral with 141 in Cheshire West and Chester. Future developments are
on site in Cheshire East and Halton. In 2019/2020 48 properties were completed.
Table 2 below shows where those properties on site and to be completed in future years are
located.
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Strategic Report
Business and Financial Review (continued)

Table 2
Area

Tenure

Completions
Years to 2018/19
inclusive

Completions
2019/2020

Future
years schemes
on site

Wirral

Social rent

38

0

34

Affordable rent

625

22

100

Shared ownership

3

0

11

For sale

7

0

0

Private rent

8

0

0

Cheshire
West
and Chester

Affordable rent

141

0

0

Cheshire East

Affordable rent

7

17

33

Shared ownership

0

9

23

Rent to buy

7

0

0

Affordable rent

0

0

65

Shared ownership

0

0

65

For sale

0

0

30

For sale to Halton
Housing Trust

0

0

69

836

48

430

Halton

TOTAL

Page 8 of 85

Magenta Living (formerly Wirral Partnership Homes Limited)
Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Strategic Report
Business and Financial Review (continued)
The Group’s five-year Statements of Comprehensive Income and Statements of Financial
Position are summarised in the table below;

Table 3 - Group Highlights, five year summary
For the year ended 31 March

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

Statement of Comprehensive Income (£’000)
Total turnover
Income from social housing lettings
Operating surplus
Surplus for the year transferred to reserves

65,730
60,542
2,944
6,768

67,282
61,139
12,213
3,654

64,123
60,177
18,091
19,031

63,651
60,329
20,477
15,353

62,190
59,029
14,923
14,839

Statement of Financial Position (£’000)
Fixed assets
Net current assets

229,341
14,044

221,610
12,116

216,511
7,539

181,356
3,001

177,611
7,448

Total assets less current liabilities

243,385

233,726

224,050

184,357

185,059

Loans (due over one year)
Deferred capital grants
Deferred income
Other creditors due after one year

81,100
25,789

81,100
19,111
-

89,300
13,284
273

72,764
6,139
1,107
324

88,685
4,796
3,500
359

Pension provision MPF/SHPS
Total Net Assets

20,981
115,515

24,768
108,747

16,100
105,093

18,041
85,982

17,090
70,629

Total Reserves

115,515

108,747

105,093

85,982

70,629

No.

No.

No.

No.

No.

12,645

12,667

12,833

12,435

12,460

4.5%

18.2%

28.2%

32.2%

24.0%

4.9%

20.0%

30.1%

31.2%

25.3%

2.1%

2.3%

2.9%

2.8%

2.7%

5.66%

4.97%

4.94%

4.63%

4.52%

2.1

2.0

1.6

1.2

1.6

£9,135

£8,585

£8,189

£6,914

£5,668

Housing properties owned at year end:
Social Housing
Statistics
Operating Surplus year as a % of turnover
Operating Surplus as a % of income from social
housing lettings
Rent losses (voids and bad debts as a % of rent and
service charges receivable)
Rent losses (gross arrears as a % of rent and
service charges receivable)
Liquidity (current assets divided by current liabilities)
Total reserves per social housing property
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Strategic Report
Objectives, Strategy and Performance Management
The Corporate and Company Plan 2018-2023 sets the strategic direction for Magenta Living
outlining our VISION, Vibrant…homes, lives, neighbourhoods and ensuring that Value for
Money is central to everything we do the Corporate Plan incorporates our Value for Money
strategy and targets. The plan is a guide and each year is reviewed to ensure that it remains
relevant. The plan was developed during a period of rapid change in the sector but over the
last year the continued impact of the rent reduction regime, Brexit and now the Covid-19
pandemic have created even more uncertainty around the operating environment of the
future.
The success of any plan is how it can be adapted take account of new situations and
opportunities as they arise. Magenta Living and its staff and board live by our company
VALUES. We are AMBITIOUS, ADAPTABLE and ACCOUNTABLE in order to achieve
EXCELLENCE.
Our VIBE, strategic objectives ensure that

we will meet our VISION

•

Vibrant, values driven through our PEOPLE

•

Investing in our current and future homes - through the effective use of ASSETS

•

Businesslike to deliver greater Value for Money - through our efficient processes and
use of RESOURCES

•

Excellent services and neighbourhoods through our engagement with CUSTOMERS

The Magenta Way
The Magenta Way is a cultural change programme introduced to drive service improvement
with a customer focus. The transformation plan within the Magenta Way has four areas of
focus around
• People: Structures, Training and Development • Technology and Data Management
• Policies, Processes and Performance Management
• Culture of Customer Excellence
The cultural emphasis is to do the right things, at the right time, by working together. There is
only one way to do something and that is properly The Magenta Way. A programme to
introduce and embed the principles of the Magenta Way and to shape future service delivery
was embarked upon and an Assistant Director of the Magenta Way appointed to lead on the
initiative. This proved especially beneficial and we saw the success during the Covid-19
lockdown when all staff responded to their new circumstances positively and with great
commitment to ensuring services continued to be delivered in The Magenta Way.
Magenta Living has had a planned and considered approach to Covid-19 and has used a
3Rs model – Respond, Recover, Re-invent. As we enter the Re-invent phase we are
starting to consider the lessons learnt and what opportunities we may have to do things
differently in the future. A delivery programme has been developed called Magenta Futures
which brings together the Magenta Way programme, Vibrant Futures (HR and OD
programme) and introduces four Experience Panels for – Customer Experience, Colleague
Experience, Social Housing Customer (for colleagues who are also customers of social
housing) and Community Partners. These panels will help us to design services around the
people who need and use them.
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Strategic Report
Objectives, Strategy and Performance Management (continued)
Our Customers
Our first priority as a provider of social housing is to address housing need from people who
are homeless to those who are inadequately housed to those who are simply wishing to
access their first home.
Many or our customers have economic circumstances which require support from welfare
benefits. The introduction of Universal Credit (UC) has been a cause for concern over a
number of years and we still await the roll out to all qualifying tenants who will transfer from
their legacy benefits to UC. It has been identified as a strategic risk however good
management has meant that rent collection levels from those in receipt of UC has remained
at similar levels to those still on housing benefit or self-paying. During the Covid-19 over 650
tenants whose circumstances were impacted by furlough, unemployment or reduced income
contacted us and a significant number of these were sign-posted to successful UC claims.
These customers continue to be monitored closely to ensure that we are there to help further
if necessary.
Homelessness and rough sleeping have been on the rise in all of the major cities and in
many smaller towns up and down Britain. It has been a focus during the pandemic for the
Liverpool City Region’s combined authority. We have assisted Wirral Council and the other
local authorities in which we operate to house homeless people and families. We have been
very active in the Housing First regime which provides support in situ to help former street
homeless people to settle into a tenancy.
To sustain our business going forward we need to understand the demographics and the
requirements that people will have for their housing. This feeds into the development
programme as new build homes need to be future proofed to meet that future demand. This
is allied to a growing and aging population and the rise of a new generation of millennials
taking their place in the workforce and housing market. Magenta Living has an ongoing
survey to identify what our current and future customers need in their homes and the
services we offer and is aligned to satisfaction. In addition, a high-level strategic survey
about demand and opportunity was undertaken by an external consultancy, arc 4.
Our Regeneration and Development plans
Magenta Living will continue to invest in its existing homes to ensure they remain up to a
modern standard. The plan has been updated following issues arising post-Grenfell and our
recent experiences with landlord compliance works and reflects our increased focus on
safety. There has been significant investment in our homes on health and safety measures
to ensure compliance with particular emphasis on fire risk, electrical installation and gas
safety.
Magenta Living has introduced a Climate Change strategic framework which enables
policies around major initiatives such as energy efficiency and community regeneration,
development schemes and zero carbon and agile working to be developed. These areas will
have significant resource implications and generate potential economies. They will be
included in the revised Business Plan and future budgets.
In some areas, wider regeneration work will be undertaken to make sure that less popular
housing remains sustainable for the future. This may include demolition and replacement
housing being built.
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Strategic Report
Objectives, Strategy and Performance Management (continued)
Table 2 above shows that Magenta Living has continued to develop and the number of
properties currently on-site. We have a development programme of 839 homes within the
current Business Plan with further plans to develop 1000+ homes in Wirral and our other
strategic areas for investment.
An officer governance group has been established to manage the wider regeneration
strategy bringing together Housing Management, Asset Management and Development
together with Finance to ensure a comprehensive approach that is affordable within the
Business Plan framework.
Our Finances
New ways of working and exploring new financial models and delivery entities has resulted
in new approaches being adopted outside of the traditional housing association operating
model.
Strong financial management has ensured that Magenta Living has been able to fund a
comprehensive investment programme of circa £200m and a development programme of
850+ new homes to date.
It is our intention to update our aspirational business plan during 2020-21 taking into account
the emerging impacts of COVID-19 and the effect this has had on demand for housing and
potential changes to tenure types as a result. Once approved the plan will be discussed with
funders in order to progress options appraisals in terms of refinancing existing debt facilities.
The current facility contains a high fixed interest rate and therefore requires restructuring in
order to progress our development plans and to provide the most effective value for money
in respect of finance costs.
Our IT and Digital Capacity
A comprehensive Magenta Living IT Strategy is in place which sets out a path for IT to
become a trusted partner across the business. It delivers business led change projects and
has transformed our data resources into information assets to provide the business with
assurance in decision making. Throughout 2019/2020 the Foundation Phase, as defined in
the strategy, established a solid base to move onto the Transform Phase. This phase
focuses on the delivery of digitalisation of colleague processes and customer services and
closely reflects the aspirations of the Magenta Way and is part of the Magenta Futures
programme.
Our Governance changes
Following changes in the Company membership structure moving away from one-third
interests of each of tenants, the Council and independents to the board becoming the sole
company members, Magenta Communities Committee was set up to ensure that customers
retain formal links with the board. It is a full committee of the board made up of three board
members, seven tenant members and two community members. It has several scrutiny
functions including reviewing lessons learnt and importantly implemented following customer
complaints. It also has a Community Fund (from the transfer VAT shelter) of £500,000 to
make resources available for community investment in schemes which meet local needs.
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Strategic Report
Objectives, Strategy and Performance Management (continued)
Our Corporate Plan 2018/23
Performance management
The Board of Magenta Living approved our current Corporate Plan in March 2018. It is
reviewed each year and our annual plan for 2019-20 retained our focus on our four areas of
strategic performance in the style of a “balanced scorecard”, set out under Magenta Living’s
four Corporate Objectives, our VIBE. In developing our annual plan for 2020-21 these
Corporate Objectives now incorporate the key aims of “The Magenta Way”, our
Transformational Change programme. The Board has also sought to enhance strategic
performance management and the ”Objectives and Key Results” (OKRs) approach to goal
setting and performance review is being implemented in 2020-21. The graphic below
illustrates our Corporate Objectives for the year.
These performance areas are also supplemented by our Key Financial Performance
Indicators which are presented as part of the strategic dashboard and which are also
included in our financial monitoring reports.

Key Financial Performance Indicators
Performance Indicator
Void Rent Loss (%)

Key Financial Performance Indicators

Target Actual RAG Performance Indicator
2.3
1.7
Asset Cover Covenant %

Target
105.0

Actual
235.0

Rent Due Collected (%)

99.5

99.9

Interest Cover Covenant/EBITDA %

110.0

459.3

Budgeted v Actual Expenditure

100.0

98.9

Cumulative Cashflow Deficit Covenant £m

140.4

99.6

Operating Surplus £m

5.2

12.2

Operating Margin (%)

8.0

14.7

Solvency (Current Ratio)

1

1.8

Liquidity: Cash (months)

1

1.2

96.2

81.1

Loan Drawdown (£m)

RAG
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Strategic Report
Value for Money Statement
Our Strategic Approach to Value for Money.
The Regulator of Social Housing’s Value for Money Standard 2018 sets out its required
outcomes and specific expectations of registered providers and their approach to Value for
Money. The Board of Magenta Living gains assurance that VfM is being achieved from a
variety of sources.
As part of the approved 5-year Corporate Plan outlined above, our strategic approach to
Value for Money (VfM) is embedded within our four key strategic objectives, our “VIBE” and
for this reason we do not have a separate VfM strategy. Instead we highlight through our
“VfM Roadmap” how certain elements of the plan are aligned and complement each other to
drive VfM for ourselves, our customers and our other stakeholders. The board’s agreed
approach to achieving VfM is presented in diagrammatical form below:

Our VfM Policies and Principles
Our VfM Policies and Principles are a broad description of our approach to VfM and how we
will achieve it. It includes descriptions of the types of activities which we will and won’t
consider in our drive to deliver improved VfM.
• We will be ambitious and adaptable in the delivery of our strategic objectives and in
doing so we will be accountable to each other, our customers and stakeholders
• Our Corporate Plan covers all Company-wide improvement activity. A supplementary
VfM roadmap details those aspects which specifically deliver improvements in VfM,
and will contain medium-term targets for these improvements
• We will be open and transparent in respect of our plans, the extent to which we are
achieving them and how what we do and the ways in which do it provides VfM for all
of our stakeholders
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•

Our people are vital to our success as an organisation and to our ability to deliver
VfM. We will invest in staff development in order to create a vibrant, values-based
culture to facilitate this.
We recognise that setting clear standards supported by effective performance
management is essential in order to drive operational efficiency. VfM will run through
everything we do
We are committed to supporting and maintaining vibrant neighbourhoods. Active
Asset Management for us will never be “a numbers game”
Our VfM approach will detail plans for improving Return on Assets through
investment / divestment / tenure change.
Investment in Commercial activity is intended to generate a return to fund further new
supply of housing across a range of tenures and for investment into the provision of
services which add value to the communities we serve
We are committed to increasing our development capacity and providing a range of
tenures and housing products while recognising our primary focus is and will remain
affordable homes
We will be an active and progressive agent of regeneration
We will actively look to develop homes in Wirral where land supply allows and will
seek opportunities in the wider region that make a commercial, social and
regeneration impact as set out in our Growth Strategy, Corporate Plan and Value for
Money Roadmap
We recognise that delivering increased digital choice and digitalised services is
essential to delivering improved operational efficiency and better services for many
customers. However, we also recognise that digital access will not suit everyone and
a range of access methods will always be available
We will work in partnership with our customers to identify priorities for investment on
a neighbourhood basis
We will measure the value generated from our investment in community activities.

The impact of COVID19 on our 2019-20 performance
The COVID-19 pandemic has had a limited effect on our 2019-20 performance due to it not
impacting until the last month of the financial year. It is anticipated that the effect on our
plans for 2020-21 however will be more far reaching and this is emerging through our
forward planning.
Performance against our Corporate Objectives and VfM metrics
Investing in homes and delivering new ones
Overall Strategy
Magenta Living’s strategy to investing in existing and future assets (new homes) expressly
seeks a balance between the two. We are cognisant of our role as Wirral’s largest landlord
and our part in anchoring communities and neighbourhoods. For this reason, our approach
to active asset management is informed by our option appraisal strategy.
We also recognise the role we have in contributing to the need for affordable new homes
and in having a development programme delivering a mix of affordable tenures (new build)
social rent, affordable rent and shared ownership. We have engaged with Homes England
and the urging of government to increase supply and have led on significant brownfield site
developments within our current development programme. Our current approved
development programme aims to complete a further 596 units by 2022 including those on
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site and those planned within our existing funding facility. We are currently pursuing refinancing to take forward an aspirational pipeline of additional development opportunities
increasing the programme by a further potential 1,000+.
The need for increasing housing supply and tenures also links closely to our two trading
entities, Hilbre Homes and Bamboo Lettings. Hilbre Homes is building homes on an
investment basis for sale. Bamboo Lettings is managing both higher value homes for market
rent and some hard to let properties achieving both investment and social outcomes. These
three strands offer a comprehensive approach to mixed tenure and mixed delivery across
the group. The trading activity not only compliments our offer but delivers profits that can
cross-subsidise future social and affordable development. This is in the context of our social
purpose mission in which we are clear these complimentary trading activities are material
but secondary to our core purpose.
We further support the strategy with a geography anchored in Wirral but one that
encompasses opportunities within the near authorities of Halton, Cheshire West and Chester
and Cheshire East looking to develop logical nodes of stock in these areas increasing
housing supply and delivering limited geographic diversification.
Through asset management we have a clear focus on landlord compliance and keeping
people safe, investing in the necessary stock data and processes to support this as part of
our Active Asset Management Strategy. As well as enhanced data we have a clear approach
to property sustainability and performance and understand the contribution each home
makes to the business. Further value will be driven through a supplier review to benchmark
supply chain costs.
Risk is embedded in our thinking; safe homes, sustainable neighbourhoods across a range
of tenures and housing markets mitigates core business risk. This is further mitigated by our
measured approach to diversification delivering additional income.
Development
As defined in the Board’s risk appetite statement approved in March 2020, the Board is
Balanced in its appetite for expanding upon the currently agreed development programme
and is Opportunistic in its appetite for inorganic growth through stock acquisition. Our current
approach is summarised as:
• We will invest in maintaining vibrant homes and neighbourhoods on the Wirral.
• Our main focus will always be on the provision of affordable housing for rent, but we
recognise this form of tenure requires subsidy to make it viable and is not the tenure
of choice for everyone.
• We will deliver a range of housing products of different tenure types across the North
West.
• Investment in non-social housing will only be considered where it is felt it can
generate a sufficient commercial return. The board sets targets for this and for the
level of return to be generated, and performance against these targets is closely
monitored.
• In 2019-20 34 new homes (plus 7 through Hilbre Homes) were completed. In line
with our stated strategy we are updating our plans and we are currently progressing
towards refinancing our existing loan arrangements in order to deliver an enhanced
development programme of an additional 1,000+ units.
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Deriving Optimal Benefit from our Resources and Assets
In order to generate surpluses and capacity to invest in the development of new homes and
community regeneration activities, the Board has taken the strategic decision to establish
two entities to support this objective; Bamboo Estates and Hilbre Homes.
Bamboo Estates
Bamboo Estates is a joint venture between Magenta Living and Torus 62 with each partner
owning 50% of the commercial entity and each leasing up to 100 social units. There are two
primary reasons for this:
• To achieve a private rent at least £30 per week higher than the social rent – Bamboo
has exceeded this target and achieved an average uplift of £40 per week.
• To alleviate void rent loss issues associated with ‘hard to let’ properties i.e. those
Magenta Living struggles to let due to low demand - Ten of the 100 leased properties
are ‘hard to let’ flats. Bamboo let these properties and still made a modest uplift of
just under £8 on the social rents.
Magenta Living has made a commitment that all of the profits it receives from Bamboo will
be reinvested as internal subsidy for the development of new social properties on Wirral.
The £467k profit to be distributed from 2019/20 will support this programme.
Hilbre Homes
Hilbre Homes is a partly-owned subsidiary company of Magenta Living with the sole aim of
building properties for outright sale. Magenta’s partner in the venture is a commercial
construction company. Hilbre has completed the development of two schemes, another two
schemes are due to complete over Summer 2020 and a further two sites with planning are
being held. The key challenge now for Hilbre will be selling the remaining new homes in the
current housing market, which has been heavily impacted by the Covid-19 pandemic.
Magenta Living’s anticipated return from Hilbre Homes has been adversely impacted by
performance challenges resulting in prolongation of build profiles, and difficulties at planning
stage causing delays to start on site. This contributed to significant increases in construction
costs that outweighed increases in property values. The result of this is that Hilbre Homes
current financial forecast is loss making. Options that would help to minimise losses are
being considered for the two remaining sites with planning.
Asset Management
Magenta Living’s Assets team ensures the provision of an enhanced, safety-focused service
to customers, whilst also driving an integrated approach to delivering value for money in
relation to its maintenance and improvement services.
The Assets team is committed to delivering a high-quality, customer focused repairs service
and to provide homes that are well maintained, habitable and safe for people to live in.
Enshrined in our 2020 policy is the recognition that a successful responsive repairs service
considers its customers, resources and statutory obligations whilst demonstrating
efficiencies and value for money. To help deliver this we have revised the repairs categories
so that we can increase the number of jobs completed in one visit and reduce the average
time taken to complete a repair. Additionally, we have completed an in-depth option
appraisal process in relation to software for the diagnosis of repairs and a replacement
contractor system. We anticipate these new systems to be operational by the end of 202021.
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Understanding the performance of our assets is a significant part of the Active Asset
Management Strategy which sets out how we will make intelligent decisions on the future
investment in our stock by ensuring that we understand the performance of our assets.
In order to understand the performance of our assets we need robust data. We have
commissioned surveyors to undertake an additional 40% stock condition survey which will
ensure we’ve obtained a level of 90% stock data by March 2021. From this point a robust
level of intelligence will be maintained by a dedicated inhouse resource refreshing stock
condition data on a rolling 10% basis.
Magenta Living uses an Asset Performance Evaluation (APE) model, in conjunction with the
stock data, to help identify the properties that are financially poor performing. The APE
model calculates the financial Net Present Value (NPV) of our assets, which in simple terms
is the income vs expenditure over a 30-year period. The calculation includes factors such as
capital investment, maintenance and cyclical costs, rental income and void rent loss. The
APE model then enables us to combine the financial information with the social objective
data that is held in the model for an overall view of how the assets are performing.
We require option appraisals to be carried out on assets that have been identified, via the
APE model, as poor performing or where their future viability is in question. The option
appraisals process enables us to determine the appropriate investment requirements or help
decide whether other interventions are needed in line with our Divestment Policy. This VFM
approach has resulted in the disposal of eight properties and two areas of land generating
an income of c.£575,000.
We are developing a new Climate Change Strategy Framework which sets out a range of
targets and aspirations in order to reduce the Magenta Living carbon footprint and overall
impact on climate change. Over the coming years, we will commit to meeting these targets
throughout the organisation from improving the energy efficiency and climate resilience of
the housing stock to ensuring sustainable best practice is executed within the office and
stores.
Our Strategy is also driven by our ambitions for the economic success of the Wirral, job
creation and prosperity. However, in the wake of Housing Sector budget reductions, the
emphasis on collaborative working across Wirral and further afield could never be more
central to the future outcomes and successes within the scope of energy efficiency and fuel
poverty projects. This collaborative approach will ensure Magenta Living accomplishes a
cleaner, greener and more sustainable future and our customers can enjoy the kind of health
and wellbeing that should be expected in sustainable and vibrant homes.
Last year we identified that our empty homes management service wasn’t performing in the
way we wanted it to. As a result, the way the service was delivered underwent a service
review. Following the recovery from Covid-19, we are aiming to reduce the average cost of
an empty home by c. £250 and the average number of days to re-let all empty homes by
c.10 days. There is still work to be done to improve our empty home performance, but we
are pleased with the progress made so far.
Magenta Living takes a safety-first approach to Asset Management and, following the
outcomes from the Hackett Review, and the organisation’s own Landlord Compliance
Review our investment plans have been developed to ensure that they are aligned with the
best compliance practices within the sector.
To ensure compliance is delivered with consistent quality and cost effectiveness we are in
the process of undertaking several major procurement projects. We have recently concluded
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the Gas Servicing and Heating project which will provide not only value in terms of
efficiencies and improved customer service, but also c.£250k cost reduction per annum.
Procurement
Magenta Living has an in-house procurement team responsible for ensuring that optimum
value is realised from its externally sourced goods and services. For new or re-procured
contracts negotiated and signed in 2019-20 the team delivered cashable savings of £375k
on previous contract prices/expected market price for the year, and £1.44m over the duration
of those contracts for a £5.6m contractual spend. Incorporating savings made on ongoing
contracts procured in previous years, the savings made through effective procurement on all
current contracts is £433k.
Furthermore, we have completed a review of our other supply chains to ensure they are
aligned with our changing priorities and they deliver the value for money approach we have
embarked upon. As a result, we have procured a new Contractor Framework for Repairs,
Empty Homes and Planned Works to ensure tangible improvements in cost or value.
Performance against our VfM Metrics.
The tables below set out our performance against the VfM targets and objectives that we set
ourselves. All benchmarking referred to is against our peer group of Northern Housing
Associations with more than 7,500 properties. The Board feels this is an appropriate peer
group as it enables comparisons of costs and overheads with organisations of similar size,
structure and operations, whilst also minimising potential regional differences in costs.

Vibrant, values driven culture (People)
VFM Metric

Investors in People

Measure
of:
Column
Effectiveness

A year on year
improvement in staff
engagement, as
Effectiveness
measured by our inhouse staff survey
Ongoing staff
sickness levels at
below peer group
average

2019/20 2019/20 RAG 2020/21
Target Actual Status Target
Retain IiP Gold
IiP Gold retained

86%

82.3%

Effectiveness 7.5 days 6.7 days

Customer
satisfaction with
services provided by Effectiveness 90.0%
Magenta Living
(STAR survey)

92.8%

Comments

IiP Gold IiP platinum is the target for Dec
Retained 2021
Engagement performance fell as a
result of a challenging year
dealing with Landlord H&S issues.
85.0% The Magenta Way
transformational change
programme has been launched to
reverse this
Target met and performance
remains impressive compared to
7.5 days
peer group.
Survey results carried over from
last year (valid for 2 yrs) with new
90.0% survey in place for 20/21.
Performance is top quartile for our
peer group.
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Investing in our current and future homes (Assets)
Measure
of:

2019/20
Target

Units developed
as a percentage
of units owned
(A-Social)

Efficiency

0.1%
(18 units)

0.37%

1.08%

Target met, with an increase in
handovers planned for 2020-21.

Units developed
as a percentage
of units owned
(B-Non-Social)

Efficiency

0.27%

0%

0.18%

Target not met due to on-site delays
affecting completions.

Development
programme
completions

Efficiency

18

34

131

VFM Metric

Reinvestment %

Efficiency

Customer
satisfaction with
Effectiveness
the home (STAR
survey)

9.01%

90.0%

2019/20 RAG 2020/21
Actual Status Target

Comments

Target met, with an increase in
handovers planned for 2020-21

9.93%

Following our identification of
compliance issues, works
programme has focussed on
8.09%
improvements to our compliance
works to ensure that we are meeting
the appropriate standards.

88.9%

Survey results carried over from last
year (valid for 2 years) with new
90.0% survey in place for 2020/2021.
Performance is better than the
median for our peer group.
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Business Like to deliver greater value for money
VFM Metric
Headline social
housing cost per
unit

Measure
of:

2019/20 2019/20 RAG 2020/21
Target Actual Status Target

Efficiency

£4,213

£4,294

Investment in management
£4,462 following IDA and in compliance
costs to ensure standards are met.

Operating Margin
(social housing
lettings)

Operating Margin
(overall)

EBITDA MRI (as a
percentage of
interest)

Comments

Efficiency

-5.42%

-1.39%

This margin is affected by the
increases in cost to invest in our
management structure and
compliance works and also the 1%
-4.92%
rent cut in year. We have managed
a more favourable position to
budget due to finding efficiencies in
other areas of the organisation.

Efficiency

-0.31%

-0.32%

See above - also impacted by
-2.55% delays on site in Hilbre Projects
LLP.

Efficiency

Delays in development have led to
lower levels of borrowing in year
than anticipated offset by a higher
cost base due to investment in
198.35%
compliance and restructuring. The
forward position assumes that
development plans can progress
during 2020-21.

205.9% 174.3%

Excellent Services and Neighbourhoods (Customers)
VFM Metric

Customer
satisfaction with
the
Neighbourhood

Occupancy
Tenancy
sustainability –
the percentage of
new lettings
maintained longer
than 12 months
Customer
satisfaction that
their rent
represents Value
for Money

Measure of:

Effectiveness

Efficiency

Efficiency

Effectiveness

2019/20
Target

90.0%

98%

93%

90.0%

2019/20
Actual

89%

99.8%

86.8%

96.2%

RAG
Status

2020/21
Target

Comments

Survey results carried over from
last year (valid for 2 years) with
new survey in place for
90.0%
2020/2021. Performance is top
quartile compared to our peer
group.
na

Target met. No target for 202021 set as the impact of
COVID19 is difficult to estimate.

na

Increasingly challenging
economic environment
impacting our communities
contributed to higher than
anticipated tenancy terminations
on affordability grounds

Survey results carried over from
last year (valid for 2 years) with
new survey in place for
90.0%
2020/2021. Performance is top
quartile compared to our peer
group.
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Operational Efficiency.
The tables below provide information as to our performance against some of our key
operational housing management metrics.

Void (empty properties) rent
loss
We continue to make good
progress in the management of
empty properties, as reflected in
year-on-year reductions in rent
lost due to properties being
empty. Our performance is still
not where we want it to be, but
recent
investment,
process
reviews and internal restructures
are intended to support the
ongoing positive trend in this
area.

Rent Collection
We continue to perform very well
in terms of rent collection, with
collection rates close to the
median for our peer group.

Rent Arrears
Ongoing excellent performance
on rent collection means that
our rent arrears are top quartile
for our peer group.
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Our Performance against Regulatory VfM metrics; at-a-glance summary.
Current
Performance

Backward Look
No.

2017-18

Metric

Forward
Look

2018-19

2018-19

2019-20

2019-20

2020-21

Actual

Actual

Sector / Peer
Group Median

Budget

Actual

Budget

6.20%

5.30%

9.01%

9.93%

8.09%

Following our identification of compliance issues we have adjusted our works programme to
focus on improvements to our compliance works to ensure that we are meeting the appropriate
standards. The target included a number of planned schemes that did not progress in the year.

0.10%

0.37%

1.08%

We delivered the programme as originally envisaged.

0.27%

0%

0.18%

Delays on site have reduced the volume of new supply delivered in year largely within our build
for sale subsidiary Hilbre Projects LLP.

6.20%
1

Reinvestment %

6.60%
New supply delivered %

1.40%

2A

1.40%

0.17%

(social housing units)

0.80%

New supply delivered %

0.00%

2B

0.05%

0.11%

(non-social housing units)

0.00%

43.37%

35.54%

36.74%

Delays in investment during the year due to delays on site have led to lower debt requirements.
We are reviewing our business plan and development programme to take in to account the latest
position and emerging market conditions around the COVID-19 pandemic which is anticipated to
result in an update to our longer term business plan and associated refinancing.

205.9%

174.3%

198.3%

Delays in development have led to lower levels of borrowing in year than anticipated offset by a
higher cost base due to investment in compliance and our management structure. The forward
position assumes that development plans can progress during 2020-21.
We have invested heavily in our compliance and asset management functions. In response to
the IDA in 2018 we have overhauled our Executive and Senior Management teams having
appointed additional capacity through interim expertise to tackle the issues faced by the
organisation. In response to the 1% rent cuts we cut deeply into the organisation structure and
have invested in a revised skill base to take the organisation forward. This along with the
increase in compliance works has increased the cost base supporting our assets in the short to
medium term which is expected to continue into 20-21 and will then see incremental efficiencies
take effect in our longer term business plan.

43.40%
3

Gearing %

39.70%

35.00%
44.30%
184%

4

EBITDA MRI Interest Cover %

450%

334%
166%

Headline social housing cost per
unit
5

3.69
3.42

3.97

(at 2018-19 prices)

6A

Operating margin
housing lettings %

4.213

4.294

4.462

-5.42%

-1.39%

-4.92%

This margin is affected by the increases in cost to invest in our management structure and
compliance works and also the 1% rent cut in year. We have managed a more favourable
position to budget due to finding efficiencies in other areas of the organisation.

-0.31%

-0.32%

-2.55%

This result is driven by the operating margin on social housing lettings and further impacted by
the delays on site in Hilbre Projects LLP which has led to a delay is receipts related to outright
sales.

-0.08%

1.40%

-1.19%

See above in respect of the operating margin.

3.44

on

social

29.20%
15.6

5.70%
24.20%
25.80%

6B

Summary Narrative

Operating margin overall %

17%

8.20%
20.10%
3.80%

7

Return on capital employed

5.80%

5.30%
3.80%
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Operating Costs
Our costs have risen in recent years through a combination of increased investment in core
services, restructure of the management team following the IDA, investment in compliance
to ensure the appropriate standards are met, improved housing management, property
investment in new and existing stock, and investment in communities. Outcomes for
customers and communities have been positive, as evidenced by our high levels of
customer satisfaction.
Outcomes delivered.
Customer Satisfaction
As evidenced in the tables above our customer satisfaction ratings benchmark extremely
positively compared to our peer group. Across all STAR Survey core questions our
performance is either top or second quartile. We are repeating our STAR survey in 2020-21
to re-measure general customer satisfaction levels. In addition, we are also launching a
range of independent transactional surveys to measure operational outcomes and service
quality on a continuous basis.
Social Value
In line with our vision and strategic objective of developing and supporting the
neighbourhoods and communities we work in, Magenta Living continues to invest in
community regeneration activities. We utilise the “HACT Wellbeing evaluation” methodology
to provide an indication of the social value created through this investment. In 2019-20 it is
estimated that our investment in community regeneration activities generated over
£19.2million of social value. A report on this activity, which explains our methodology, can
be found in our social value statement at https://www.magentaliving.org.uk/annual-reports
Key achievements during the year have included: 900 employment, skills and enterprise
outcomes, including 127 full-time employment outcomes and engaging 15
apprenticeships; 2,071 neighbourhood outcomes including creating a safe and clean
neighbourhood environment and dealing with anti-social behaviour; 1,837 financial inclusion
outcomes including accessing affordable banking and insuring home contents.
Volunteers continue to assist us in creating this social value and we engage with 93
volunteers on a regular basis within 15 community facilities that we provide. Partnerships
with local agencies continue to be important in gaining value for money on this agenda and
have made key contributions to the headline figure particularly in health and wellbeing; for
example we’ve enabled people within our neighbourhoods to quit smoking during the year
via our partnership with the local smoking cessation service.
Magenta Communities Committee comprises a majority of tenants supported by Board and
Community Members and drives forward our ambition in this area. They have granted
£65,000 to key partner agencies during the year to increase employment, enterprise,
community and educational outcomes. Such investment in community partners is a costeffective way to generate social value in local communities. A further £100,000 was set
aside for a Covid19 emergency fund during in March 2020, to respond to the crisis situation
faced by many within our communities.
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Customer Engagement
Magenta Living continues to engage customers in the delivery and improvement of our
services. We continue to work in partnership with the Wirral Residents Umbrella Association
and Magenta Communities Committee has ramped up its involvement in scrutiny and
consultation on services offered with a detailed scrutiny schedule drafted.
Magenta Communities Committee has considered the following items during the year:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Magenta Living Corporate Plan
The Magenta Way, our Transformational Change Plan
Customer Experience feedback including in relation to Feedback, Compliments and
Complaints
Customer feedback surveys from independent organisation IFF
Anti-Social Behaviour initiatives and performance
Social Value Statement
The national Together with Tenants Charter

An active campaign, Compass, promotes opportunities to get involved identifying customers
willing to take part in scrutiny and other involvement opportunities. Furthermore, a vast
range of engagement activities take place on a local neighbourhood basis.
We self-assess against the regulatory consumer standards annually, providing Board with
assurance we meet and exceed the standards and we were an ‘early adopter’ of the NHF
Together with Tenants campaign.
Magenta Communities Committee ensures we are maximising our social value and
engaging customers in our operations. This will be further informed by independent
surveying of our customers in real-time provided by IFF, while a customer excellence group
is part of our transformational change plan, the Magenta Way, to ensure we continue to
deliver services with customers at the forefront.
Our Future Plans and Targets; summary.
The table below details key initiatives from our Corporate Plan and their anticipated impact
on key VfM metrics.

Action
Development and Growth:
• Complete
current
development
programme of 596 units.
• Approve,
resource
and
deliver
aspirational programme of 1610 units
• Increase the number of investment
properties leased to Bamboo
Stock investment:
• Embed improved landlord compliance
management
• Complete 90% stock condition survey
and reset baseline NPV
• Agree and deliver new active asset
management strategy
• Deliver climate change aspirations

Timescale

2020-22
2022-27
2020-21
2020-21
2020-21
2021-24

VfM metric impacted
Reinvestment and new
supply
Capacity (gearing and
interest cover)
Cost per unit
Operating margins and
/
Reinvestment and new
supply
Capacity (gearing and
interest cover)
Cost per unit
Operating margins and
ROCE

How
Up
Down
Down
Up
Up
Down
Down
Up

2020-50
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Action
Operational Efficiency:
• Reduce costs of empty property
management (direct and void rent loss)
• Reduce cost through growth and
increased digitalisation of services
Customer engagement and social impact:
• Develop, and respond to, a programme of
customer scrutiny projects.
• Magenta Communities recognised as an
example of good practice by March 2021
• Creation of £16m of social value
• Recruit to, and market the success of
tenants completing, the Inspiring Dreams
initiative

Timescale
2020-22
2020-23

2020-21
2020-21

VfM metric impacted
Capacity (gearing and
interest cover)
Cost per unit
Operating margins and
ROCE
Cost per unit

How
Up

Customer satisfaction

+ve

Down
Up
Neutral

2020-21
2020-21

VfM Conclusion
We have invested in our asset compliance functions and management teams to ensure that
we have sound foundations upon which to deliver our future plans for stock investment, new
homes development, community regeneration and transformational change. We recognise
the adverse effect that this has had on our cost base. COVID-19 will significantly impact our
service delivery model and our development plans for new homes. We are currently
recasting our business plan to reflect these influencing factors. Future years will present new
challenges in the delivery of Value for Money. The Board recognises this and to this end we
will be developing a revised Value for Money strategy with new targets for improving VfM in
the medium term. This new VfM strategy will be approved by the Magenta Living Board
before the end of 2020.
The Board’s Value for Money Self-Assessment and Statement of Compliance
The Regulator of Social Housing’s Value for Money Standard 2018 sets out its required
outcomes and specific expectations of registered providers and their approach to Value for
Money. The Board of Magenta Living has completed a self-assessment against the VfM
Standard, and gains assurance that VfM is being achieved from a variety of sources
including;
- Regular review of vfm objectives, targets and performance
- Strategic discussions as to optimum use of resources in delivering our objectives.
These have led, amongst other things, to the establishment of Hilbre Homes and
Bamboo Lettings.
- All Board reports requiring consideration and evidencing of VfM implications of
decisions made
- Executive quarterly monitoring of procurement activity and savings
- Production of an annual social value report and VfM statement
Taking into account the evidence provided in this document the Board of Magenta
Living is satisfied that we continue to comply with the Regulator of Social Housing’s
VfM standard.
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Risk Management
The Board of Magenta Living approved the company’s Risk Management and Business
Assurance Framework in April 2019. This framework was developed following an In-depth
Assessment carried out by the Regulator of Social Housing in 2018. The development of the
framework was led by the Magenta Living Board with the support of external risk
management experts. The framework was further reviewed and updated in March 2020. This
new framework incorporates enhancements identified as a result of an internal audit of risk
management delivered by our internal auditors, BDO. The framework sets out our risk and
assurance approach and the roles of Board, Group Audit and Risk Committee and senior
management in how we manage, monitor, report and gain assurance on the effectiveness of
our risk management activities. It also contains the Board’s risk appetite statement. The
revised Risk and Assurance framework is shown in graphical form below:

Strategic Risks
The table below provides a summary of Magenta Living’s current strategic risk register. All
ratings and controls have been reviewed and updated as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic
and several net risk scores have increased in recent months.
Risk area

Nature of risk

Key controls

Government
policy
and
collectable
income.

A potential combination of
Government policy, welfare reforms
and demand for our properties has
the potential to reduce both the
amount of income it would be
possible for us to raise and our
ability to collect it. COVID-19
exacerbates the risk as macroeconomic impacts affect
employment levels household
income.
Combination
of
inadequate
Business Planning and failure to
achieve Value for Money (VFM) has

-Affordability checks prior to sign-up.
-Rent arrears are pursued via a firm but fair approach.
-We ensure that tenants who are struggling to pay are
fully supported.
-Use of specialist arrears management software and
clear escalation policies.

Business
Planning and
Value
for

- Annual budget set and approved by Board
- Business Plan subject to annual review and stress
testing
Monthly financial monitoring reports to ELT

Net
Rating
Score
Net
Rating
Medium
High 12

Net
Rating
Medium
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Risk area

Nature of risk

Key controls

Money

the potential to significantly impact
on our ability to achieve and deliver
our strategic aims and objectives.
Failure to deliver the development
programme negatively impacts on
the growth of the business. Key
concerns
around
planning
rejections, increasing competition
for land, staff shortages and
changing
government
policies
reducing capital grant funding and
decreasing revenue funding for
affordable housing. COVID-19 has
significantly
increased
risk
associates
with
contractor
insolvency and sales.
Financial resources are either
inadequate
or
not
managed
appropriately leading to resource
surpluses or shortages which could
impact on the achievement of
corporate objectives.
Ineffective Governance leads to
failure to achieve Corporate aims.
Non-compliance with the adopted
NHF Code of Governance could
lead to a regulatory down-grade.
Board unable to enact change it
believes to be in the company's best
interest.
Failure to comply with Health and
Safety regulations (e.g. gas
servicing, Control of Asbestos,
Legionella, Fire Safety, electrical
safety and lift maintenance and
servicing) would lead to a serious
breach of relevant legislation and
Serious Detriment under the HCA
Consumer Standard. COVID-19 has
increased the likelihood of landlord
compliance failures due to
difficulties gaining access to
shielding households.

Board Quarterly Financial monitoring reports to Board
detailing performance against covenants, Key
Financial Indicators (golden rules) and budgets.
- Skilled and experienced staff employed in
development
- Engage in partnerships to spread risk.
- Planning consultants and architects advise
development on the likelihood of gaining planning
approvals and how best to appeal against planning
rejections.
- Rolling programme of new site acquisition
and development
-Provision in business plan and budget for new build
development projects
-Regular contact with Homes England and application
for grant
- Annual Business Plan reviewed and approved
- Annual budget set and approved
- Treasury report included in financial monitoring
report
- Financial hedging arrangements within Loan
Agreement.
- Regular review of key governance documents
- Board Director induction on appointment
- Appraisals undertaken annually with PDPs produced
and monitored
- Board Directors recruited based on skills identified
by Board in line with Corporate Plan requirements
- Regular external governance reviews
A 10-month gas servicing programme ensures
compliance is met for the statutory 12 month annual
gas servicing target. All compliance works have
control policies, safety standards are monitored
internally/externally. Fire Risk Assessments of high
rise/high risk building are undertaken to regulatory
standards and monitored. Audits undertaken by
qualified staff and consultants. Compliance measured
KPI report to ELT and Board monthly. Budget
spend/performance reviewed monthly. Report also to
be presented to Audit and Risk Committee on a
quarterly basis and ML Board every 6 months.

Net
Rating
Medium
High 12

Engaging with customers and key
partners along with excellent service
delivery is central to our Corporate
Plan for 2018-23, therefore
ineffective customer engagement
and the poor delivery of services
would mean our vision would not be
realised.

- All board reports include comments on the
involvement of, and impact on, customers.
- The Compass scrutiny framework offers a menu of
involvement opportunities.
- The Magenta Communities Committee will ensure
that Vibrant neighbourhoods and lives as well as
social value is delivered.
- Customers are involved in decision making as part
of the Complaints process.

Net
Rating
Low

Poor data governance results in
poor quality data which negatively
impacts MLs ability to meets in
statutory duties and impairs
effective decision making and
governance.
Failure to achieve anticipated return
of 11% results in less internal
subsidy available to support
Magenta's development
programme. Hilbre does not repay
the loan to Magenta before 31st
March 2023 which would cause
Magenta Living to breach its
covenant with the lender.

- Data Governance Group has been established to
provide a framework through which improvements in
data governance can be delivered.
- New AD of IT appointed and an ICT strategy has
been approved.

Net
Rating
Medium 9

- Enterprise and Development Committee monitor
Hilbre performance and have to approve site specific
loan applications..
- Loan Agreement provides; legal charge over sites
and only discharged as completed units are sold. a
limit to on-lending within each loan agreement - any
additional loan required must be approved by EDC..
- Regular financial performance reporting at Hilbre
Board and EDC against triggers and mitigations
allows time to identify issues earlier on and implement
mitigations.

Net
Rating
High 16

Development

Treasury
Management
and
Financial
Capacity
Ineffective
Governance

Health
&
Safety
and
landlord
compliance

Customer
Excellence

Data
integrity

Hilbre
Homes

Net
Rating
Score
High 12

Net
Rating
High 16

Net
Rating
Medium
High 12

Net
Rating
Medium
High 12

6
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Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporting ‘SECR’
Reasons for Change in Emissions
This is the first year of reporting under SECR and forms the base year for reporting. No
changes in emissions is therefore reported at this time.
Business travel
The use of online conferencing is encouraged for internal meetings.
Quantification and Reporting Methodology
HM Government Environmental Reporting Guidelines: including streamlined energy and
carbon reporting guidance (March 2019) has been used for the collation of data sources and
reporting of emissions. UK Government GHG Conversion Factors for Company Reporting
has been used for the reporting of emissions, using the 2019 version.
Organisational boundary
The financial boundary of the business has been used to determine the reporting boundary.
Operational scope
Measurements include mandatory scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions. No estimates have been
used.
Exclusions
This report has no data exclusions.
Base Year
The base year is 2019-20. This is the first year for which reliable data has been collated and
is typical in respect of business operations.
The policy is to recalculate the base year and the prior year emissions which meet a
significance threshold value change of 5% of base year emissions.
Target setting & Responsibilities
The emissions reduction target is to reduce reportable scope 1, 2 and 3 emissions in tonnes
of CO2e per number of portfolio properties by 2% per year. The performance against target
will be reviewed on a quarterly basis during the reporting year.
Intensity Measurement
The metric chosen for reporting is gross global scope 1 and 2 emissions in tonnes of CO2e
per number of portfolio properties as this is a common business metric for a property-based
operation. An intensity measurement will be reported each year with comparison made
against previous year to highlight performance.
Carbon Offsetting
No Carbon Offsetting is recorded in this reporting period.
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SCOPE 1 CO2e (tonnes)

% estimated

Specific exclusions, % this represents for relevant scope
(excluding geographic exclusions) & give an explanation.

2019-2020

Gas consumption

0

None

1,290.3

Owned transport

0

None

374.6

Fugitive emissions

0

None

11.3

Total
SCOPE 2 CO2e (tonnes)

1,676.2
% estimated

Purchased Electricity Total
SCOPE 3 CO2e (tonnes)

Exclusions

0

None

% estimated

Exclusions

0

None

39.2

N/A

None

28.4

Business travel activity: private
vehicles, rental car trips.
Transmission & distribution
losses of purchased electricity
Total
Total Gross Emissions
Gross Scope 1, 2, 3 emissions
Intensity Metric (Gross emissions)

Scope 1, 2, 3 emissions / number of portfolio
properties

334.4

67.6

Exclusions
Exclusions as above

2,078.1

Exclusions
Exclusions as above

6.474
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Energy Efficiency Actions
In the first reporting year, any activities to improve energy use and reduce carbon emissions
will not have quantitative data to measure the positive environments impact. Any activity with
a positive outcome will be incidental, with its overall impact not measurable.
For year 2 and beyond, measures will be put in place to identify reductions where
measurement and quantitative analysis is possible.
Replacement equipment
Where equipment has required replacement due to failure, the new equipment is, where
possible, the most efficient available for the application.
This has included the fitting of LED lighting in place of fluorescent and incandescent units,
heating controls with start optimisation technology integrated, air conditioning controls with
built in time schedules as well as low energy IT equipment.
Staff awareness
Energy use can be impacted on by each individual and advice has been given where
appropriate to help individuals minimise their usage. Initiatives have been put in place where
the impact on poor energy management could produce adverse effects.
These individual initiatives can provide the opportunity for best practice operation in other
properties and a coordinated campaign to target all locations to identify similar best practice
will be rolled out in 2020.
Travel minimisation
The use of technology is being adapted where possible. With increased mobile technology
and ‘work at home’ practices being implemented, a move towards online meetings is being
considered where the necessity for face-to-face interaction at a central location is not
essential.
The impact on business travel will be monitored in 2020, together with a measure of the
positive and negative impacts of new ways of working, to determine if the use of technology
can be increased over potentially unnecessary travel.

Future Investment
The Board is committed to spending £28.1 million in 2020/21 to improve and maintain its
existing housing stock (£12.4 million via the Improvement Programme, £9.6 million on
responsive and day to day repairs and £6.1 million on planned maintenance). The Board
have allocated £494k for disabled adaptations on our properties.
The Board is committed to spending £26.8 million in 2020/21 on the continuation of our new
build programme that will see the commencement/continuation of approximately 430 new
units across a range of tenures.
Capital Structure and Treasury Policy
Treasury Management is the responsibility of the Executive Director of Finance and the
Group’s Treasury Management Strategy is reviewed annually and is approved by the Board.
The strategy seeks to address funding and liquidity risks and loan covenant compliance.

Page 32 of 85

Magenta Living (formerly Wirral Partnership Homes Limited)
Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

To date the Group has only used derivative instruments that are embedded in (and not
separable from) its loan agreement. In other words, it has bought protection against interest
rate movements from its lender, The Royal Bank of Scotland (RBS).
In keeping with the aims of its Treasury Management Policy, the Group will seek an
appropriate level of assurance with regards to its future funding costs. To achieve this aim,
approximately 75% of the Group’s loans will be either fixed or will be hedged by a derivative
instrument, removing the exposure to adverse interest rate movements. The remaining 25%
of loans will be held on a floating or variable basis, to enable the Group’s total indebtedness
to be tailored to changes in its overall business plan requirements. These parameters of
75% fixed/hedged and 25% variable may be varied by +/-5%, in order to provide flexibility.
They may also be varied by the Board upon presentation of a business case for doing so.
The Group has currently drawn £81.1 million (2019: £81.1 million) of its total loan facility of
£125 million, of which £41.8 million is on fixed rate terms and £39.3 million is on variable rate
terms. The Group is due to repay the loans by 31st March 2035. Following the 2017-18
restatement of the loan agreement with the funders which allows for new initiatives to be
funded by on-lending, the overall facility will reduce to £105 million in 2023 and then to £90
million in 2026.
Our current Business Plan is awaiting funder’s approval and this has a peak debt of £99.4
million which is expected to be reached in 2021/22. This may change as the business plan is
reviewed and may be revised in the context of our future growth aspirations.
The Group borrows only in sterling and so does not have any currency risk. The Group has
no significant exposure to securities price risk as it holds no listed equity investments.
Cash Flows
Cash inflows and outflows for the period under review are shown in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on page 48 of the financial statements. The consolidated statement
of cash flows shows that during the year the Group generated net cash inflow, from
operating activities of £11.1 million (2019: £15.1 million) and made net interest payments of
£3.1 million (2019: £3.5 million).
Current Liquidity
Cash and bank balances at the 31 March 2020 were £6.0 million (2019: £9.6 million),
including £0.9 million (2019: £0.9 million) relating to the Community Fund. The Group did not
repay any of the Group’s loan facility in respect of fixed and variable rate loans during the
year. As such the Group had a net current asset position at 31 March 2020 totalling £14.0
million (2019: £12.1 million). The Group’s policy is to hold significant cash balances of
between one and three months of working capital and to ensure that loan facilities are in
place to fund future requirements. The main factor influencing the amount and timing of
borrowing is the rate of progress and delivery of the Investment Programme works, the new
build programme and the dates of the agreed forward interest rate fixes.
Loan Compliance
Loan covenants are primarily based on asset cover and net operating cash flow. The
purpose of the net operating cash flow is to identify a single measure of the overall
performance of the business plan, effectively showing the company’s ability to generate
funds to cover its debt payments due. The asset cover is a measure of the minimum asset
cover sufficient to protect the lender’s security.
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Strategic Report
Capital Structure and Treasury Policy (continued)
The Group undertakes regular monitoring of covenant compliance on a quarterly basis. The
Business Plan assumptions and forecast figures are also regularly stress tested to ensure
covenant compliance is maintained in the future. All the lender’s loan covenants were met
throughout the year and at the year end.
Statement by the Directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with
Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006
A director of a company must act in the way he/she considers, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole.
The following table summarise how the Directors have fulfilled their duties in this regard.
Section 172 requirement
Page reference
The likely consequences of any decision in the long term
10
The interests of the company's employees
36
The need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers,
10-11, 25-26
customers and others
The impact of the company's operations on the community and the
10-11
environment
The desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high
4, 35
standards of business conduct, and
The need to act fairly as between members of the company.
12, 18
NHF Code of Governance
Magenta Living adopted the NHF Code of Governance in 2010 and subsequently the revised
version in 2015. The Company is fully compliant following the approval of revised Articles of
Association at the AGM in September 2016.
Governance and Viability Standard
The Board confirms that Magenta Living complies in all material respects with the
Governance and Viability Standard as set out by the Regulator for Social Housing. The
most recent In Depth Assessment (IDA) which took place in 2018 resulted in a compliant
G2/V1 assessment.
Statement of compliance
In preparing this Strategic report, the board has followed the principles set out in the
Statement of Recommended Practice: Accounting by registered social housing providers
(SORP).
The Strategic Report was approved by the board on 24th September 2020 and signed on its
behalf by:

David Clark
Chair
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Report of the Directors
Board members and executive directors
The present Board members and the Executive Directors of the Group and those who
served during the year and up to the date of approval of these financial statements are set
out on page 3. The Board members are drawn from a wide background bringing together
professional, commercial and local experience. The Board members are appointed on a
skills basis with the mix of skills being regularly assessed and reviewed in line with the board
skills matrix. Board Directors appointed after October 2019 will usually be appointed for two
terms of three years. In extenuating circumstances, this may be extended by one year
appointments up to a maximum of three additional years. Board Directors appointed prior to
October 2019 are appointed for two terms of four years and in extenuating circumstances,
this may be extended by one additional year. All Board appointments will be for a maximum
term of nine years.
The Executive Directors consist of the Chief Executive and the other members of the
Group’s Executive Leadership Team. There were two Interim Executive Directors appointed
for part of the financial year. The Executive Directors that served during the period are set
out on page 3.
The Executive Directors act as executives within the authority delegated by the Board.
The Group has insurance policies in place that indemnify its Board members and Executive
Directors against liability when acting for the Group.
Service contracts
The Chief Executive and the other Executive Directors are appointed on permanent
contracts of employment on individual contracts, their notice periods being six months.
Pensions
The Executive Directors are members of either the Social Housing Pension Scheme or the
Merseyside Pension Fund, both defined benefit final salary pension schemes. They
participate in the schemes on the same terms as all other eligible staff and the Group
contributes to the schemes on behalf of its employees.
Other benefits
In addition to their basic salary, the Executive Directors are entitled to the provision of a car
allowance. Details of the remuneration bandings are included in note 10 to the audited
financial statements.
Tenant involvement
We actively encourage tenants’ involvement in decision-making by promoting mechanisms
of tenant involvement and there are clear reporting arrangements between tenant groups
and the Board.
Donations
During the year ended 31st March 2020 the Group has made no political contributions and
any charitable donations were made during the course of its ordinary activities.
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Report of the Directors
Post balance sheet events
On 30th June 2020 Starfish Commercial Limited the minority member of Hilbre Projects LLP,
served a six-month notice of its intention to exit the membership agreement. At the point
that Starfish Commercial Limited exits the membership agreement WPH (Developments)
Limited would become liable for any losses incurred in Hilbre Projects LLP. On 14th
September 2020 the Board of Starfish Commercial Limited informed the Board of Wirral
Partnership Homes (Developments) Limited of its intention to pass a special resolution to
enter creditors’ voluntary liquidation. The six-month notice to exit the membership agreement
will continue to run through to 30 December 2020 and is more likely to lead to Starfish
Commercial Limited exiting the membership agreement given the most recent information
provided.
We consider that there have been no other events since the year end that have had a
significant effect on the Group’s financial position.
Payment of creditors
In line with government guidance, our policy is to pay purchase invoices within 30 days of
receipt, or earlier if agreed with the supplier. We will comply with all of the requirements of
the new Supplier Payment Practices and publish our supplier payment performance
accordingly.
Employees
The strength of the Group lies in the quality of all its employees. In particular, our ability to
meet our objectives and commitments to tenants in an efficient and effective manner
depends on their contribution.
The Group shares information on its objectives, progress and activities through regular office
team briefs and departmental meetings involving Board members, the Executive Leadership
Team and staff.
We are committed to equal opportunities and in particular we support the employment of
disabled people, both in recruitment and in the retention of employees who become disabled
whilst in the employment of the Group.
Health and safety
The Board is aware of its responsibilities on all matters relating to health and safety. The
Group has prepared detailed health and safety policies and provides staff training and
education on health and safety matters. It is the Group’s policy to maintain and, where
possible, exceed the health and safety standards stipulated by legislation.
Internal controls assurance
The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for establishing and maintaining the whole
system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
The system of internal control is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and to provide reasonable, and not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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Report of the Directors
The process for identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by the Group
is ongoing and has been in place throughout the period commencing 1 April 2019 to the date
of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
Key elements of the control framework include:
• Board approved terms of reference and delegated authorities for the Audit and Risk
Committee;
•

clearly defined management responsibilities for the identification, evaluation and
control of significant risks;

•

robust strategic and business planning processes, with detailed financial budgets and
forecasts;

•

formal recruitment, retention, training and development policies for all staff;

•

established authorisation and appraisal procedures for significant new initiatives and
commitments;

•

a risk averse approach to treasury management which is subject to external review
on an annual basis;

•

regular reporting to the appropriate committee on key business objectives, targets
and outcomes;

•

Board approved whistle blowing and anti-theft and corruption policies;

•

Board approved fraud policies, covering prevention, detection and reporting, together
with recoverability of assets, and

•

Regular monitoring of loan covenants.

The Board cannot delegate ultimate responsibility for the system of internal control, but it
can, and has, delegated authority to the Group Audit and Risk Committee to regularly review
the effectiveness of the system of internal control. The Board receives quarterly reports from
the Group Audit and Risk Committee together with minutes of committee meetings.
The Group Audit and Risk Committee has received and approved the Chief Executive’s
annual review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control for the Company and the
annual report of the internal auditor and has reported its findings to the Board.
Statement of Responsibilities of the Board for the report and financial statements
The Board is responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the report of the directors and
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.
Company law requires the Board to prepare financial statements for each financial year.
Under that law the Board have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards and applicable laws including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”). Under company law the Board must not
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs and profit and loss of the Group and Company for that period.
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Report of the Directors
In preparing these financial statements, the Board is required to:
•

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

•

make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

•

state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards and the Statement of
Recommended Practice: Accounting by Registered Housing Providers (2018), have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

•

prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate
to presume that the Company will continue in business.

The Board is responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to
show and explain the Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Group and Company and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006, the Housing and Regeneration
Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for Private Registered Providers of Social Housing
2019. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
The Board confirms that:
•

so far as each Board member is aware there is no relevant audit information of which
the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

•

the Board members have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make
themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditors
are aware of that information.

The Board members are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and
financial information included on the company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from
legislation in other jurisdictions.
Going concern
The Group’s business activities, its current financial position, and factors likely to affect its
future development are set out within the Report of the Directors. The Group has in place
long term debt facilities, including £43.9 million of undrawn facilities at 31 March 2020 (2019
- £43.9 million), which provide adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and
development programmes along with the Group's day to day operations.
The COVID-19 pandemic has seen a reduction in short to medium term expenditure due to
challenges with the availability of resources and materials in the construction sector. Rental
income has however remained stable. The retiming of investment in our housing assets as a
result of a reduction in expenditure due to COVID-19 pandemic will enable the organisation
to effectively manage the impact on the cashflow.
The Group’s subsidiary Hilbre Projects LLP is showing a loss at 31 March 2020 including a
provision for impairment which is heavily impacted by prudent assumptions in respect of
anticipated sales values that can be achieved due to the COVID-19 pandemic and its effect
on the housing market.
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Report of the Directors
Going concern (continued)
A further prudent provision has been made in the parent company accounts in respect of the
potential partial non-recovery of the on-lending from Magenta Living to WPH (Developments)
Limited for on-lending to Hilbre Projects LLP. An estimate of future income from the sale of
properties and land currently held has been considered against the remaining costs to
complete, timing of sales activity and forecast interest costs. WPH (Developments) Limited
is reliant on the support of the parent Magenta Living in terms of the risk of the partial nonrecovery of the on-lending to Hilbre Projects LLP. The loan to Hilbre Projects LLP is being
repaid as sales proceeds from the completed sites are received and any remaining balances
are due for repayment 31 January 2023.
Efficiency savings and alternative schemes are being evaluated in order to recover the
financial position of Hilbre Projects LLP. The long-term business plan is being developed to
take account of the development aspirations of the organisation in order to align this to meet
social housing demand in the region.
The Group also has a long-term business plan which shows it is able to service these debt
facilities while continuing to comply with lenders covenants. While the Consolidated
Statement of Income shows a small deficit for the year the underlying EBITDA (Earnings
Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) position remains strong and
discretionary spend continues to be closely managed.
On this basis, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of
twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements are signed. For
this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial statements.
Public Benefit
The Board members (who are also the charitable trustees) confirm they have referred to the
guidance contained in the Charity Commission’s general guidance on public benefit when
reviewing the Charity’s aims and objectives and in planning future activities and setting
policies for the year.
External auditors
The external audit contract term is for a period of 3 years and is currently in its second year.
A resolution to appoint external auditors accordance with section 487(2) of the Companies
Act 2006 will be proposed at the forthcoming September board meeting.

Page 39 of 85

Magenta Living (formerly Wirral Partnership Homes Limited)
Report and financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020

Information set out in the Strategic Report
In accordance with s414C(11) of the Companies Act, the Company has chosen to include
information in respect of its financial risk management objectives and policies and exposure
to risk in the Strategic Report. This information would otherwise be required by Schedule 7
of the 'Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008' to be contained in the Report of the Directors.
Approval
The report of the Board was approved by the Board on 24 September 2020 and signed on
its behalf by:

David Clark
Chair
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Magenta Living (formerly Wirral
Partnership Homes)
Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Magenta Living (formerly Wirral Partnership
Homes Limited) “the parent company” and its subsidiaries (“the group”) for the year ended
31 March 2020 which comprise the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the
Company Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated and Company Statements
of Changes in Reserves, the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position,
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework
that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards, including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland” (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:
•
•
•

give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s
affairs as at 31 March 2020 and of the group’s and of the parent company’s income
and expenditure for the year then ended;
have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice; and
have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act
2006, the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008 and the Accounting Direction for
Private Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs
(UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical
Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Conclusions relating to going concern
We have nothing to report to you in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
ISAs (UK) require us to report to you were:
•
•

the board’s use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is not appropriate; or
the board has not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about the group’s or the parent
company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for a
period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Magenta Living (formerly Wirral
Partnership Homes)
Other information
The board is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the
financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
•
•

the information given in the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the
financial statements; and
the Strategic Report and the Report of the Directors have been prepared in
accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and the parent company and its
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the Strategic Report or the Report of the Directors.
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the
Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•
•
•
•

adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns; or
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

In addition, we have nothing to report in respect of the following matter where the Housing
and Regeneration Act 2008 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion:
•

a satisfactory system of control over transactions has not been maintained.
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Magenta Living (formerly Wirral
Partnership Homes)
Responsibilities of directors
As explained more fully in the Statement of Responsibilities of the Board set out on pages 37
and 38, the board is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the board
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the board is responsible for assessing the group’s and
the parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
board either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located
on the Financial Reporting Council’s web-site at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
Use of our report
This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Sue Hutchinson FCCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of
BEEVER AND STRUTHERS
Statutory Auditor
St George’s House
215/219 Chester Road
Manchester
M15 4JE
Date: 29 September 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Turnover

3

65,730

67,282

Cost of Sales
Operating expenditure

3
3

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on revaluation of investment properties

6
15

(3,955)
(61,985)
(210)
2,898
256

(2,109)
(59,591)
5,582
1,878
4,753

Operating surplus

5

2,944

12,213

Share of profit in joint venture
Interest receivable and other finance income
Interest and financing costs

17
7
8

467
220
(3,757)

179
22
(3,981)

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

(126)
11

(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit scheme
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of MPF pension scheme
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of SHPS pension scheme

(17)

(143)
26
26
26

8,433
(19)

8,414

6,583
328

(243)
(4,422)
(95)

Total comprehensive income for the year

6,768

3,654

Total comprehensive income for the year is attributable to:
- Owners of the parent company
- Non-controlling interests

7,288
(520)

3,775
(121)

6,768

3,654

The consolidated results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 44 to 85 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on
24th September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

David Clark
Chair

Sue Goodman
Chair of Group Audit and Risk
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Company Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Note

2020

2019

£’000

£’000
68,458
(3,451)
(59,185)
5,822
1,878
4,753

Turnover
Cost of Sales
Operating expenditure

3
3
3

Gain on disposal of fixed assets
Gain on revaluation of investment properties

6
15

63,551
(2,099)
(61,802)
(350)
2,898
256

Operating surplus

5

2,804

12,453

Interest receivable and other finance income
Interest and financing costs

7
8

806
(3,757)

499
(3,981)

(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before taxation
Tax on surplus on ordinary activities

(147)
11

(Deficit)/surplus for the year
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit scheme
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of MPF pension scheme
Actuarial gain/(loss) in respect of SHPS pension scheme

Total comprehensive income for the year

8,971

(17)

(19)

(164)
26
26
26

8,952

6,583
328

(243)
(4,422)
(95)

6,747

4,192

The company’s results relate wholly to continuing activities.
The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 85 form part of these financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 44 to 85 were approved by the Board and authorised for
issue on 24th September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

David Clark
Chair

Sue Goodman
Chair of Group Audit and Risk
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Consolidated and Company Statements of Changes in Reserves
For the year ended 31 March 2020
Income &
Expenditure
Reserve
£’000

Opening reserves as at 1 April 2018

Surplus for the year
Initial recognition of multi-employer defined benefit
scheme
Actuarial loss in respect of MPF pension schemes
Actuarial loss in respect of SHPS pension
schemes
Amounts attributable to non-controlling interests

Balance as at 31 March 2019

Deficit for the year
Actuarial gain in respect of MPF pension scheme
Actuarial gain in respect of SHPS pension scheme
Amounts attributable to non-controlling interests

Closing reserves as at 31 March 2020

105,134

8,414
(243)
(4,422)
(95)

121

Consolidated
Noncontrolling
interest

Company
Income &
Expenditure
Reserve

Total

£’000

£’000

(41)

£'000

105,093

107,434

-

8,414
(243)

8,952
(243)

-

(4,422)
(95)

(4,422)
(95)

(121)

-

-

108,909

(162)

108,747

111,626

(143)
6,583
328

-

(143)
6,583
328

(164)
6,583
328

520

(520)

-

-

116,197

(682)

115,515

118,373

The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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Company Number: 04912562
Consolidated and Company Statement of Financial Position
Note

Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets –
properties
Other tangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets
Investment properties
Investment - subsidiary
Investment in joint venture

housing

Group
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

12

211,430

204,172

214,327

206,373

13
14
15
16
17

4,206
13,036
669

4,456
12,780
202

4,206
13,036
130
90

4,456
12,780
130
90

229,341

221,610

231,789

223,829

19

14,710
141
6,510

9,754
79
4,020

5,117
141
6,294

964
79
3,838

19

-

-

8,629

8,920

20

5,962

9,630

5,173

9,077

27,323

23,483

25,354

22,878

(13,279)

(11,367)

(10,980)

(10,183)

14,044

12,116

14,374

12,695

243,385

233,726

246,163

236,525

22

(106,889)

(100,211)

(106,809)

(100,131)

26

(20,981)

(24,768)

(20,981)

(24,768)

Total net assets

115,515

108,747

118,373

111,626

Reserves
Income and expenditure reserve

115,515

108,747

118,373

111,626

Reserves attributable to
Owners of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

116,197
(682)

108,909
(162)

118,373
-

111,626
-

Total reserves

115,515

108,747

118,373

111,626

Current assets
Properties held for sale
Stock
Trade and other debtors due within
one year
Trade and other debtors due in more
than one year
Cash and cash equivalents

Creditors: Amounts falling due within
one year

18

21

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: Amounts falling due after
more than one year
Provisions for liabilities
- Pension provision MPF/SHPS

The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
The financial statements on pages 44 to 85 were approved by the Board and authorised for issue on
24th September 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

David Clark
Chair

Sue Goodman
Chair of Group Audit and Risk
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2020

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Note

2020
£ ’000

2019
£ ’000

29

11,077

15,192

(19,502)
3,706
3,991
220
-

(10,676)
(96)
3,395
6,065
22
(599)

(11,585)

(1,889)

(3,160)

(8,200)
(3,514)

(3,160)

(11,714)

(3,668)

1,589

9,630

8,041

5,962

9,630

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase and construction of housing properties
Purchase of fixed assets – other
Proceeds from sale of housing properties
Social Housing Grant
Interest received
Purchase of Investment Properties

Cash flow from financing activities
Loan drawdown of borrowing
Loan repayment of borrowing
Interest paid

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

20

The accompanying notes on pages 49 to 85 form part of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
1.

Legal status
The Company is a private company limited by guarantee with no share capital, registered
under the Companies Act 2006 and is a registered housing provider. The registered office is
Partnership Building, Hamilton Street Birkenhead CH41 5AA. The Group consists of the
Company and one dormant subsidiary, Wirral Partnership Homes (Building Services) Limited
and two trading subsidiaries, Wirral Partnership Homes (Developments) Limited and Hilbre
Projects LLP (build for direct sale). In addition the Group has an involvement in a joint venture
– Bamboo Estates a registered LLP with two partners – Magenta Living and Torus62 Limited.

2.

Accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with UK Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (UK GAAP) including Financial Reporting Standard 102 (FRS 102) and the Housing
SORP 2018: Statement of Recommended Practice for Registered Social Housing Providers
and comply with the Accounting Direction for Registered Providers of Social Housing 2019.
Magenta Living is a public benefit entity in accordance with FRS102.
The financial statements are presented in sterling (£) and rounded to the nearest £’000.
Going concern
The Group's business activities, its current financial position and factors likely to affect its
future development are set out within the Strategic Report and include a review of the
potential impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic based on management judgements. We have
also considered the impact of COVID-19 as a specific external shock that could impact the
underlying demand or expected future cash flows of our housing assets. However, the Group
has seen no reduction in demand for our properties. Void levels have remained consistent with
historic levels and are in-line with the business plan. Going forward the Group now has safe
working practices in place to be able to continue to let properties in a manner that is safe and
socially distanced, which will withstand any further waves of COVID-19. Hence the Group do
not consider COVID-19 as an impairment trigger at this time. (see page 38). The underlying
EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation) position remains
strong and discretionary spend continues to be closely managed. The COVID-19 pandemic
has seen a reduction in short to medium term expenditure due to challenges with the
availability of resources and materials in the construction sector. Rental income has however
remained stable. The retiming of investment in our housing assets as a result of a reduction in
expenditure due to COVID-19 pandemic will enable the organisation to effectively manage the
impact on the cashflow. The Group’s subsidiary Hilbre Projects LLP is showing a loss at 31
March 2020 including a provision for impairment which is heavily impacted by prudent
assumptions in respect of anticipated sales values that can be achieved due to the COVID-19
pandemic and its effect on the housing market. A further prudent provision has been made in
the parent company accounts in respect of potential under-recovery of the outstanding loan
provided from Magenta Living to WPH (Developments) Limited for on-lending to Hilbre
Projects LLP. An estimate of future income from the sale of properties and land currently held
has been considered against the remaining costs to complete, timing of sales activity and
forecast interest costs. Efficiency savings and alternative schemes are being evaluated in
order to recover the financial position of Hilbre Projects LLP. The long-term business plan is
being developed to take account of the development aspirations of the organisation in order
to align this to meet social housing demand in the region. The Group has in place long term
debt facilities which provide adequate resources to finance committed reinvestment and
development programmes, along with the Group's day to day operations. The Group also has
a long-term business plan which shows that it is able to service these debt facilities whilst
continuing to comply with lenders covenants.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)
On this basis, the Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future, being a period of not
less than twelve months after the date on which the report and financial statements are
signed. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in the financial
statements
Significant judgements and estimates
Preparation of the financial statements requires management to make significant judgements
and estimates. The items in the financial statements where these judgements and estimates
have been made include:
Recoverability of amounts due from Hilbre Projects LLP relating to on-lending and associated
interest. An estimate of future income from the sale of properties and land currently held has
been considered against the remaining costs to complete, timing of sales activity and forecast
interest costs. An estimate of £1.027m for the potential non recovery of amounts owed has
been provided for in Magenta Living.
Valuation of work in progress in respect of Hilbre Projects LLP has been carried out to
ascertain the costs to complete and estimated sales values leading to an impairment of
£978k.
Significant management judgements
The following are the significant management judgements made in applying the accounting
policies of the Group that have the most significant effect on the financial statements:
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting policies (continued)
Significant management judgements (continued)
•

•

•

Impairment of Group’s tangible assets
Management seek to identify indicators of impairment by considering the economic
viability and expected future financial performance of the asset. Where it is a component
of an asset or property, the viability of that unit or property is also considered. The basis
for the recoverable amounts of the assets has been considered based on EUV-SH or
depreciated replacement cost. The Group has to make an assessment as to whether an
indicator of impairment exists. In making the judgement, management considered the
detailed criteria set out in the SORP. The Group carries out an impairment review,
assessing the Useful Economic Lives of properties and their future value to the Group,
taking into account the current level of demand for properties, the level of void losses,
projected discounted cash flows and the ongoing investment in property maintenance and
improvement. We have also considered the impact of COVID-19 as a specific external
shock that could impact the underlying demand or expected future cash flows of our
housing assets. However, the Group have seen no reduction in demand for our
properties. Void levels have remained consistent with historic levels and are in-line with
the business plan. Going forward the Group now has safe working practices in place to
be able to continue to let properties in a manner that is safe and socially distanced, which
will withstand any further waves of COVID-19. Hence the Group do not consider COVID19 as an impairment trigger at this time. (2019: £Nil).
Defined benefit pension obligations
Management’s estimate of the defined benefit obligations is based on a number of critical
underlying assumptions such as the standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate
and anticipation of future salary increase. Variation in these assumptions may significantly
impact the obligation amount and the annual defined benefit expenses (as analysed in
Note 26). The liability as at 31 March 2020 was £20.98 million. The valuation of the
pension fund assets is based on December 2019 data rolled forward to March 2020,
rather than using actual March 2020 information. The actuary has indicated that
adjusting for this would increase the year end assets valuation by 0.75%.
Capitalisation of property development costs
Distinguishing the point at which a project is more likely than not to continue, allowing
capitalisation of the associated development costs requires judgement. After
capitalisation management monitors the asset and considers whether changes indicate
that impairment is required. The total amount capitalised in the year was £2.3 million.

Significant Estimates
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on
recognition and measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenses is provided below.
Actual results may be significantly different.
Useful lives of depreciable assets
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting
date based on the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to
technological obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software and IT equipment
and changes to decent homes standards which may require more frequent replacement of
key components. Accumulated depreciation at 31 March 2020 for tangible and intangible fixed
assets was £80.7 million (2019: £72.5m)
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the parent, Magenta Living and its subsidiaries,
Wirral Partnership Homes (Building Services) Limited, Wirral Partnership Homes
(Developments) Limited (WPH Developments) and Hilbre Projects LLP and are prepared
using the purchase method of accounting. The relevant proportions of Joint Venture profit/loss
are consolidated as reported by those entities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting policies (continued)
Turnover and revenue recognition
Turnover represents rental income receivable in the year, service charges, fees, income from
property sales and other income receivable in the year (excluding VAT) for goods and
services supplied in the year and revenue grants (including those from the Community Fund)
receivable in the year.
Rental income is recognised from the point when properties under development reach a
practical point of completion or otherwise become available for letting. Charges for support
services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due under the
contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities.
Taxation
The Company is a registered charity and as such is potentially exempt to corporation or
capital gains tax on its charitable activities. Any taxable profits generated by the subsidiaries
will be subject to corporation tax.
Deferred taxation
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences at the reporting date, except as
otherwise indicated. Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable
profits. If and when all conditions for retaining tax allowances for the cost of a fixed asset
have been met, the deferred tax is reversed. Deferred tax is calculated using the tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date that are
expected to apply to the reversal of the timing difference. Amounts recognised in respect of
deferred tax are not discounted in accordance with FRS 102.
Value Added Tax
The Group is registered for VAT and charges value added tax (VAT) on some of its income
and is able to recover only part of the VAT it incurs on expenditure. The financial statements
include VAT to the extent that it is suffered by the Group and is not recoverable from H.M.
Revenue and Customs or is subject to the VAT sharing agreement. The balance of VAT
payable or recoverable at the year end is included as a current liability or asset.
Community Fund
As part of the stock transfer arrangement with Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council (“the
Council”), the Community Fund (“the Fund”) was established. The purpose of the Fund is to
provide the Company with funds to undertake projects that are mutually beneficial to the
Company and the Council while furthering the Company’s principal business. A Working
Group, made up of an equal number of representatives from the Company and the Council,
exists to determine the use of the funds.
The Fund comprises of money from three principal sources:
1. Balance of the Council’s Housing Revenue Account on its closure.
2. VAT savings from arrangements put in place at transfer.
3. Council and Company disposal claw back share on the sale of land not to be used for
the purpose of social housing.
The monies received by the Fund shall be used for purposes that include several specifically
referred to in an agreement between the Council and the Company. The remainder is to be
utilised by joint agreement of the Working Group set between the Council and the Company.
Although access to such funds is subject to the agreement of the Working Group (and are
therefore not treated as income until agreement has been reached by the Working Group),
the Fund’s monies are beneficially and legally those of the Company and are therefore
included in the Company’s reported cash balance.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting policies (continued)
Prior to application of the Fund’s monies a deferred income creditor is recognised that is
released on utilisation of the related cash balance. As the Company’s approval is required for
all fund allocations the deferred income balance is shown as due after one year and linked by
disclosure to the cash balance. Where it is known that funds will be allocated in the next 12
months, these are classified as due within one year.
Government Grants
Government grants include grants receivable from Homes England, local authorities and other
government organisations. Government grants received for housing properties are recognised
in income over the useful life of the housing property structure and, where applicable, its
individual components (excluding land) under the accruals model. Grants relating to revenue
are recognised in income and expenditure over the same period as the expenditure to which
they relate once reasonable assurance has been gained that the entity will comply with the
conditions and that the funds will be received.
Grants due from government organisations or received in advance are included as current
assets or liabilities. Government grants received for housing properties are subordinated to the
repayment of loans by agreement with Homes England. Government grants released on sale of
property may be repayable but are normally available to be recycled and are credited to a
Recycled Capital Grant Fund and included in the statement of financial position in creditors. If
there is no requirement to recycle or repay the grant on disposal of the asset, any unamortised
grant remaining within creditors is released and recognised in income and expenditure.
Other grants
Grants received from non-government sources are recognised using the performance model. A
grant which does not impose specified future performance conditions is recognised as revenue
when the grant proceeds are received or receivable. A grant that imposes specified future
performance-related conditions on the company is recognised only when these conditions are
met. A grant received before the revenue recognition criteria are satisfied is recognised as a
liability.
Interest payable
Interest payable is charged to the income and expenditure account in the year.
Financial Instruments
Financial instruments which meet the criteria of a basic financial instrument as defined in
Section 11 of FRS 102 are accounted for under an amortised historic cost model. The Group
has applied the provisions of both Section 11 and Section 12 of FRS 102 in full and as such
has classified all financial instruments as basic.
Pensions
The Group participates in two funded multi-employer defined benefit schemes, the Social
Housing Pension Scheme (‘SHPS’) and the Merseyside Pension Fund (‘MPF’).
Scheme assets are measured at fair values. Scheme liabilities are measured on an actuarial
basis using the projected unit credit method and are discounted at appropriate high quality
corporate bond rates. The net surplus or deficit, adjusted for deferred tax, is presented
separately from other net assets on the statement of financial position. A net surplus is
recognised only to the extent that it is recoverable by the Group.
The current service cost and costs from settlements and curtailments are charged against
operating surplus. Past service costs are spread over the period until the benefit increases
vest. Interest on the scheme liabilities and the expected return on scheme assets are included
net in other finance costs. Re-measurements are reported in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
2.

Accounting policies (continued)
Supporting people
Charges for support services funded under Supporting People are recognised as they fall due
under the contractual arrangements with Administering Authorities.
Housing properties
Housing Properties are principally properties available for rent and are stated at cost less
depreciation. Costs include the cost of acquiring land and buildings, development costs and
expenditure incurred in respect of improvements.
Works to existing properties which replace a component that has been treated separately for
depreciation purposes, along with those works that result in an increase in net rental income
over the lives of the properties, thereby enhancing the economic benefits of the assets, are
capitalised.
Shared ownership properties are split proportionally between current and fixed assets based
on the element relating to expected first tranche sales. The first tranche proportion is classed
as a current asset and related sales proceeds included in turnover. The remaining element is
classed as a fixed asset and included in housing properties at cost, less any provisions
needed for depreciation or impairment.
Freehold land is not depreciated.
Depreciation of housing properties
The Group depreciates the major components of its housing properties over the following
useful economic lives:
Structure
Windows and Doors
Kitchens
Bathrooms
Boilers
Roofs
External wall insulation
CCTV systems
Car Park
For High Rise and Sheltered Blocks:
Heating Systems
Door Entry, Lift, Fire Alarm and Water Systems
Electrical systems

60 years
30 years
20 years
30 years
15 years
40 years
20 years
10 years
30 years
25 years
20 years
15 years

Assets are not depreciated while under construction or until they are brought into use.
Sale of housing properties
Under the terms of the transfer agreement a proportion of the proceeds from the right to buy
sales are shared with the Council. The balance of any funds due to the Council will be
included as a current liability.
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2.

Accounting policies (continued)
Impairment
Housing properties are assessed annually for impairment indicators. Where indicators are
identified an assessment for impairment is undertaken comparing the scheme’s carrying
amount to its recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of a scheme is deemed to
exceed its recoverable amount, the scheme is written down to its recoverable amount. The
resulting impairment is recognised as operating expenditure. The Group carries out an
impairment review, assessing the Useful Economic Lives of properties and their future value
to the Group, taking into account the current level of demand for properties, the level of void
losses, projected discounted cash flows and the ongoing investment in property maintenance
and improvement. We have also considered the impact of Covid-19 as a specific external
shock that could impact the underlying demand or expected future cash flows of our housing
assets. However, the Group have seen no reduction in demand for our properties. Void
levels have remained consistent with historic levels and are in-line with the business plan.
Going forward the Group now has safe working practices in place to be able to continue to let
properties in a manner that is safe and socially distanced, which will withstand any further
waves of Covid-19. Hence the Group do not consider Covid-19 as an impairment trigger at
this time.
Investment Properties
Investment properties consist of commercial properties and other properties not held for the
social benefit or for use in the business. Investment properties are measured at cost on initial
recognition and subsequently at fair value as at the year end, with changes in fair value
recognised in income and expenditure. Investment properties were valued as at 31 March
2020 by Smith & Sons professional qualified external valuers. The valuation of properties was
undertaken in accordance with the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors Valuation
Standards. The comparable technique was used to assess the value of the scheme. The
valuation broadly corresponds with broader market trends: the ONS house price index
showed that property valuations in the North West of England had increased by 3.4% over the
12 months to the end of March 2020. The Hometrack house price index had house prices in
the closest city Liverpool rising by 3.3% for the 12 months to 31st July 2020 with the last 3
months increase being 0.8%.
However, the valuation noted the material uncertainty arising from the COVID-19 pandemic.
Should the market value of house prices fall as a result of the pandemic and subsequent
recession of the economy then the reduction in value of these properties will affect the surplus
generated in the year. As an illustration, a 10% fall in the valuation of the properties would
reduce overall surplus by c.£1,304k.
Other tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is charged on other tangible fixed assets on a straight-line basis over their
expected useful lives.
Freehold offices
Car Parking
CCTV system
Furniture, fixtures and fittings
Computers and office equipment
Other equipment

30 years
30 years
10 years
4 years
4 years
4 years

Assets are not depreciated while under construction or until they are brought into use.
Intangible fixed assets
Depreciation is charged on intangible assets on a straight-line basis over their expected
useful lives.
Software

3 years
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Accounting policies (continued)
Leased assets
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset to the group. All other leases are
classified as operating leases. Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to income
and expenditure on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the rental payments are
structured to increase in line with expected general inflation, in which case the group
recognises annual rent expense equal to amounts owed to the lessor.
Properties leased to Group Company
Housing properties are leased to Bamboo Estates based on a 5 year lease. The lease
commences from the time the tenancy in Bamboo Estates begins and is recognised on a
straight line basis over the lease term.
Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Association
and entities controlled by the group. Control is achieved where the group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. Investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are accounted for at cost less
impairment in the individual company financial statements.
An entity is treated as a joint venture where the Group is party to a contractual agreement
with one or more parties from outside of the Group to undertake an economic activity that is
subject to joint control. The Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income includes the
Group’s share of the operating results applying accounting polices consistent to the Group. In
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position the interest in associated undertakings are
shown as the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets/liabilities.
Debtors
Short term debtors are measured at transaction price, less any impairment. Loans receivable
are measured initially at fair value, net of transactions costs, and are measured subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment.
Where deferral of payment terms have been agreed at below market rate, and where
material, the balance is shown at the present value, discounted at a market rate.
Creditors
Short term trade creditors are measured at the transaction price. Other financial liabilities,
including bank loans, are measured initially at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Properties for sale
Properties for outright sale (including those under construction) are valued at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises materials, direct labour and direct development
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated sales price after allowing for all further
costs of completion and disposal.
Stock
Stocks are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Where necessary, provision is
made for obsolete and defective stock.
Current asset investments
Investments are stated at cost.
Gift Aid Income
Gift aid income is recognised in the year of receipt.
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Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating
surplus
Group - continuing activities
2020
Turnover Cost of sales
Operating
expenditure
£ ’000
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Current asset property sales
Development expenditure
Other (see note below)

£ ’000

60,542

-

(61,384)

(842)

167
387

(111)
-

(16)
-

56
(16)
387

554
Activities other than Social Housing
Corporate Repairs
Lettings
Other

£ ’000

(111)

(16)

(820)
(3,024)

(67)
(73)
(445)

(505)
973
(263)

65,730

(3,955)

(61,985)

(210)

£ ’000

Other social housing activities
Current asset property sales
Development expenditure
Other (see note below)

Activities other than Social Housing
Corporate Repairs
Lettings
Other

427

382
1,046
3,206

2019
Turnover Cost of sales
Operating
expenditure

Social housing lettings

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ’000

£ ’000

£ ’000

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ’000

61,139

-

(57,739)

3,400

24
379

(23)
-

(15)
-

1
(15)
379

403

(23)

(15)

365

552
1,046
4,142

(368)
(1,718)

(98)
(287)
(1,452)

86
759
972

67,282

(2,109)

(59,591)

5,582

Costs associated with Other “Other social housing activities” are predominantly staff costs relating to
staff included within social housing lettings operating costs. Any allocation of these costs against the
above income streams would be arbitrary and therefore has not been undertaken.
Turnover associated with Other “Activities other than Social Housing” includes property sales £2,417k,
services to related entities £304k, aerial masts £185k,support link £136k, miscellaneous services
£71k,other funding/grants £49k, and leasehold major repairs £20k. Cost of Sales associated with
Other “Activities other than Social Housing” includes £1,026k to reflect the provision for loss on
payment of loan from Hilbre Homes and £978k for impairment against Hilbre Homes’ activities.
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Particulars of turnover, cost of sales, operating expenditure and operating
surplus
Company – continuing activities
2020
Turnover Cost of sales
Operating
Expenditure
£ ’000
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Current asset property sales
Development expenditure
Other (see note below)

Activities other than Social Housing
Corporate Repairs
Lettings
Other

£ ’000

£ ’000

60,542

-

(61,201)

(659)

167
387

(111)
-

(16)
-

56
(16)
387

554

(111)

382
1,046
1,027

(820)
(1,168)

(67)
(73)
(445)

(505)
973
(586)

63,551

(2,099)

(61,802)

(350)

(16)

2019
Turnover Cost of sales
Operating
Expenditure
£ ’000
Social housing lettings
Other social housing activities
Current asset property sales
Development expenditure
Other (see note below)

Activities other than Social Housing
Corporate Repairs
Lettings
Other

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ’000

£ ’000

£ ’000

427

Operating
surplus/
(deficit)
£ ’000

61,139

-

(57,632)

3,507

24
379

(23)
-

(15)
-

1
(15)
379

403

(23)

(15)

365

552
1,046
5,318

(368)
(3,060)

(98)
(287)
(1,153)

86
759
1,105

68,458

(3,451)

(59,185)

5,822

Costs associated with Other “Other social housing activities” are predominantly staff costs
relating to staff included within social housing lettings operating costs. Any allocation of these
costs against the above income streams would be arbitrary and therefore has not been
undertaken.
Turnover associated with Other “Activities other than Social Housing” property sales £165k,
services to subsidiaries and related entities £378k, aerial masts £185k,support link £136k,
miscellaneous services £71k,other funding/grants £49k, and leasehold major repairs £20k.
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Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from social housing
lettings
Group
2020

2019

General
Housing
£’000

Supported
Housing
£’000

Total

Total

£’000

£’000

Service charge income
Charges for support services
Amortisation of government grants
Other revenue grants

49,297
1,076
1,080
232
507

7,887
172
173
37
81

57,184
1,248
1,253
269
588

57,607
1,228
1,180
241
883

Turnover from social housing lettings

52,192

8,350

60,542

61,139

Operating expenditure on social housing
lettings
Management
Service charge costs

18,254
2,046

2,885
327

21,139
2,373

19,505
2,311

Routine maintenance

9,004

1,441

10,445

11,642

Planned maintenance

5,372

859

6,231

4,062

10,260

1,641

11,901

10,976

187

30

217

254

7,782

1,252

9,034

9,618

-

-

-

(666)

38

6

44

37

52,943

8,441

61,384

57,739

(751)

(91)

(842)

3,400

876

140

1,016

1,326

Turnover from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of identifiable service
charges and net of voids

Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Release of Impairment Provision of Housing
Properties
Restructuring and other costs
Operating expenditure on social housing
lettings
Operating surplus/(deficit) on social housing
lettings
Void losses

Management costs include £3,930k of current and past pension service costs for both the
Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF) and the Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS) (2019:
£4,920k).
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Particulars of turnover and operating expenditure from social housing
lettings
2020

Company

2019

General
Housing
£’000

Supported
Housing
£’000

Total

Total

£’000

£’000

Turnover from social housing lettings
Rent receivable net of identifiable service
charges and net of voids
Service charge income
Charges for support services
Amortisation of government grants
Other revenue grants

49,297
1,076
1,080
232
507

7,887
172
173
37
81

57,184
1,248
1,253
269
588

57,607
1,228
1,180
241
883

Turnover from social housing lettings

52,192

8,350

60,542

61,139

Operating expenditure on social housing
lettings
Management
Service charge costs
Routine maintenance
Planned maintenance
Major repairs expenditure
Bad debts
Depreciation of housing properties
Release of Impairment Provision of Housing
Properties
Restructuring and other costs

18,030
2,046
9,004
5,372
10,260
187
7,823
-

2,885
327
1,441
859
1,641
30
1,252
-

20,915
2,373
10,445
6,231
11,901
217
9,075
-

19,360
2,311
11,642
4,062
10,976
254
9,656
(666)

38

6

44

37

52,760

8,441

61,201

57,632

(568)

(91)

(659)

3,507

876

140

1,016

1,326

Operating expenditure on social housing
lettings
Operating (deficit)/surplus on social housing
lettings
Void losses

4.

Accommodation in management and development
Group and Company
At the end of the year accommodation in management for each class of accommodation was
as follows:
Group & Company
2020
2019
Social housing
No.
No.
General housing
- Social Rent
9,498
9,559
- Affordable Rent
1,359
1,328
Supported housing
1,763
1,763
Low Cost home ownership
25
17
Total owned
12,645
12,667
Accommodation managed for others
30
38
Total managed
12,675
12,705
Accommodation in development at year end

287
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Operating surplus
The operating surplus is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
Group
2019
£'000

2020
£'000
Depreciation of housing properties (Note 3)
Write-off of housing property components
Write-off of housing properties demolished
Release of Impairment Provision of Housing
Properties
Depreciation of other tangible fixed assets
(note 13)
Amortisation of intangible fixed assets
(note 14)
Amortisation of government grants
Operating lease rentals - vehicles
Auditors’ remuneration (excluding VAT)
- for the audit of the financial statements of
the Company
- for the audit of the financial statements of
the subsidiaries
- for the audit of the financial statements of
joint ventures

6.

Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

9,034
-

9,095
156
367
(666)

9,075
-

9,133
156
367
(666)

250

263

250

263

-

-

-

-

(269)

(241)

460

431

460

431

21

21

21

21

5

5

5

5

2

2

2

2

(269)

(241)

Surplus on sale of fixed assets – housing properties
Group & Company
2020
2019
£ ’000
£ ’000
Disposal proceeds
Amount due to council re RTB sales
Carrying value of fixed assets
Released on disposal of grant
Administration and legal expenditure

4,216
(493)
(899)
91
(17)

4,165
(771)
(1,579)
77
(14)

2,898

1,878

There were 37 Right to Buy properties sold during the financial year (2019: 60) and 21 Right
to Acquire sales (2019: 12).
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Interest receivable and other income

Interest receivable and similar income
Interest receivable from group undertakings
Distribution of Profit from Joint Venture
Gift Aid received from Subsidiary
undertaking

8.

2020
£’000

Group
2019
£’000

Company
2020
2019
£ ’000
£ ’000

21
199
-

22
-

21
566
199
20

22
477
-

220

22

806

499

Interest payable and financing costs
Group & Company
2020
2019
£ ’000
£ ’000
Loans and bank overdrafts
Defined benefit pension charge – MPF
Defined benefit pension charge - SHPS

9.

3,161
581
15

3,558
411
13

3,757

3,982

Employees
Average monthly number of employees expressed in full time equivalents (calculated based
on a standard working week of 37 hours):
Group & Company
2020
2019
No.
No.
Administration
Property services
Housing, support and care
Building operatives

184
27
168
115
494

180
17
164
149
510

Employee costs:
Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Other pension costs
Restructuring

15,868
1,518
3,827
225

14,873
1,429
3,414
145

21,438

19,861

The majority of the Group’s employees are members of the Merseyside Pension Fund or of the
Social Housing Pension Scheme (SHPS). Further information on each scheme is given in note
26.
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Key management personnel
Aggregate remuneration of the Executive Management Team and the Board for the year
ended 31 March 2020:
Executive Directors

2020
£

2019
£

Executive director emoluments
Executive director employers national insurance
Executive director pension contributions

490,906

600,812

62,598
59,865

73,605
66,038

Executive Director emoluments
Board emoluments

613,369
81,868

740,455
78,488

695,237

818,943

Compensation for loss of office payments for the year totalled £ nil (2019: £34,718).
The emoluments of the Executive Management Team and other staff, including pension
contributions, for the year or period of actual service, fell into the following bands:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£110,001 - £120,000
£120,001 - £130,000
£130,001 - £140,000
£140,001 - £150,000
£150,001 - £160,000
£170,001 - £180,000
£180,001 - £190,000
£200,001 - £210,000
£220,001 - £230,000

2020
No.
10
4
7
2
1
1
1
-

2019
No.
7
6
2
1
1
1
1
1
1

The table above includes a number of staff whose total remuneration included redundancy
and pay in lieu of notice. These fell into the following bandings:

£60,001 - £70,000
£70,001 - £80,000
£80,001 - £90,000
£90,001 - £100,000
£100,001 - £110,000
£220,001 - £230,000

2020
No.
1
1
1
1
-
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Key management personnel (continued)
The emoluments of the highest paid director, the Chief Executive, for the 12 month period,
excluding pension contributions, were £161,100 (2019: £158,500). The Chief Executive is a
member of the Merseyside Pension Fund. He is an ordinary member of the pension scheme
and no enhanced or special terms apply. The Company does not make any further contribution
to an individual pension arrangement for the Chief Executive. The Executive Team and Board
are considered the key management personnel for the purposes of FRS 102.
£979k was paid in the year to third parties, for making available the services in the role of
director of the Company or its subsidiaries (2019: £413k).
Board expenses of £5,839 were incurred in the year (2019: £1,643).
Non-Executive Directors
The fees and expenses paid by the Association during the year, to the non-executive Directors,
its subsidiary Boards and its Committees, are shown below.

Board Director

2020

2019

Steve Foulkes
David Clark
Muriel Wilkinson
Michael Larsen
Stuart Whittingham
Jeff Green
Stephen Penlington
Nick Gerrard
Phil Gandy
Matthew Brown
Gordon Ronald
Sharon Grover
Sue Goodman
Geoff Broadhead
Mike Turner

5,000
15,310
5,323
7,093
5,000
7,493
2,685
5,000
5,000
5,479
8,189
5,296
5,000

5,000
15,338
5,000
2,431
3,082
7,000
5,000
7,094
5,102
5,000
5,027
5,105
3,662
2,583
2,064

Total Magenta Remuneration
John Fedden
Ken Russell
Martyn Green

81,868
7,755
5,481
6,886

78,488
7,210
5,000
5,355

101,990

96,053

Total Board Remuneration

John Fedden and Ken Russell are Board Directors of Hilbre Projects LLP and Martyn Green is a
Board Director of Bamboo Estates LLP.
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Tax on Surplus on ordinary activities:
Group
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on surplus for the period
Adjustments in respect of prior years

Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

17

19

17

19

17

19

17

19

-

-

-

-

17

19

17

19

2020
£’000

Group
2019
£’000

(126)

8,433

(147)

(24)

1,602

(28)

1,704

- Income not taxable for tax purposes
- Adjust in respect of prior years

24
17

(1,602)
19

28
17

(1,704)
19

Total tax charge

17

19

17

19

Deferred tax
Net origination and reversal of timing differences
Total Tax

Total tax reconciliation
(Deficit)/surplus on ordinary activities before tax
Theoretical tax at UK corporation tax rate 19%
(2019: 19%)
Effects of:

Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
8,971
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Tangible fixed assets - properties

Group Housing Properties

Social
housing
properties
held for
letting
£’000

Social
housing
properties
under
construction
£’000

Shared
ownership
housing
properties
under
construction
£’000

Completed
shared
ownership
housing
properties
£’000

Total

£’000

261,857
2,277
3,589
62

9,883
14,033
(3,589)
-

409
3,535
(744)
(2,216)
-

413
744
-

272,562
17,568
2,277
(2,216)
62

1,078

-

-

-

1,078

-

(1,557)
(1,795)

1,795

-

(1,557)
-

(29)

-

-

-

(29)

(691)

-

-

-

(691)

(1,249)

-

-

(31)

(1,280)

266,894

16,975

2,779

1,126

287,774

68,378

-

12

68,390

9,025

-

-

9

9,034

(8)

-

-

(8)

(691)

-

-

(691)

(379)

-

-

(2)

(381)

76,325

-

-

19

76,344

At 31 March 2020

190,569

16,975

2,779

1,107

211,430

At 31 March 2019

193,479

9,883

409

401

204,172

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Work to existing properties
Schemes completed
Transferred to properties for sale
Buybacks
Adjustments - Grant
Adjustments - Land
Transferred to shared ownership
Assets transferred to investment
properties
Disposal of components
Disposal – sales
At 31 March 2020
Depreciation and impairment
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation charged in year
Released
on
transfer
investment properties
Released
on
disposal
components
Released on disposal - sales
At 31 March 2020

to
of

-

Net book value

.
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Tangible fixed assets – properties (continued)

Company Housing
Properties

Social
housing
propertie
s held for
letting
£’000

Social
housing
properties
under
construction
£’000

Shared
ownership
housing
properties
under
construction

Completed
shared
ownership
housing
properties
£’000

Total

263,996
-

10,080
14,770

409
3,535

413
-

274,898
18,305

2,277

-

-

-

2,277

3,837

(3,837)

(744)

744

-

-

-

(2,216)

-

(2,216)

62
1,078
-

(1,557)

-

-

62
1,078
(1,557)

-

(1,795)

1,795

-

-

(29)

-

-

-

(29)

(691)

-

-

-

(691)

(1,249)

-

-

(31)

(1,280)

269,281

17,661

2,779

1,126

290,847

68,513
9,066

-

-

68,525
9,075

(8)

-

-

12
9
-

(691)

-

-

(379)

-

-

(2)

(381)

76,501

-

-

19

76,520

At 31 March 2020

192,780

17,661

2,779

1,107

214,327

At 31 March 2019

195,483

10,080

409

401

206,373

£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions
Work to existing properties
Schemes completed
Transferred to properties for
sale
Buybacks
Adjustments - Grant
Adjustments - Land
Transferred
to
shared
ownership
Assets
transferred
to
investment properties
Disposal of components
Disposals – Sales
At 31 March 2020

Depreciation and
impairment
At 1 April 2019
Depreciation charged in year
Released on transfer to
investment properties
Released on disposal of
components
Released on disposal - sales
At 31 March 2020

-

(8)
(691)

Net book value
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Tangible fixed assets – properties (continued)
Housing properties including offices (note 13) book value net of depreciation comprises:
Group

Freehold land and buildings - Housing Properties
Freehold land and buildings - Office Properties

Note 13

Total

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

211,430
4,112

204,172
4,292

215,542

208,464

Housing properties including offices (note 13) book value, net of depreciation
comprises:
Company
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

214,327
4,112

206,373
4,292

Total

218,439

210,665

Social housing assistance

Group & Company

Freehold land and buildings - Housing Properties
Freehold land and buildings - Office Properties

Note 13

Total accumulated social housing grant received or
receivable at 31 March
Held as deferred capital grants
Recognised in statement of comprehensive income
Total

Expenditure on works to existing properties

Note 23

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

26,930

19,710

25,976
954

19,116
594

26,930

19,710

Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

Components capitalised
Amounts charged to income and expenditure
account (Note 3)

2,277

1,937

11,901

10,976

Total

14,178

12,913

At 31 March 2020 the Group owned 12,645 housing properties (2019: 12,667). The properties
are carried in the balance sheet at cost after depreciation. The loans are secured against the
charged properties, there are currently 11,741 charged properties and 904 uncharged
properties. The carrying value of the charged properties is £136,279k.
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Tangible fixed assets – other
Group and Company

14

Freehold
office
properties
£’000

Furniture
fixtures and
fittings
£’000

Computers
and office
equipment
£’000

Other
Equipment

Total

£’000

£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions

5,303
-

59
-

1,118
-

730
-

7,210
-

At 31 March 2020

5,303

59

1,118

730

7,210

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019
Charged in period

1,011
180

59
-

978
62

706
8

2,754
250

At 31 March 2020

1,191

59

1,040

714

3,004

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

4,112

-

78

16

4,206

At 31 March 2019

4,292

-

140

24

4,456

Intangible fixed assets
Group and Company

15.

Software
£’000

Total
£’000

Cost
At 1 April 2019
Additions

1,310
-

1,310
-

At 31 March 2020

1,310

1,310

Depreciation
At 1 April 2019

1,310

1,310

Charged in period

-

-

At 31 March 2020

1,310

1,310

Net book value
At 31 March 2020

-

-

At 31 March 2019

-

-

Investment Properties – Non Social Housing Properties held for letting

At 1 April 2019
Transfer from housing properties
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation

Group and Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
12,780
7,104
324
599
256
4,753

At 31 March 2020

13,036

12,780
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15.

Investment Properties – Non Social Housing Properties held for letting
(continued)
Properties are valued at Open Market Value as at 31 March 2020 based on the valuation by
external RICS advisors and are held to be leased to the joint venture Bamboo Estates.

16.

Investment in subsidiary
The financial statements consolidate the results of Wirral Partnership Homes (Building
Services) Limited (WPH Building Services), Wirral Partnership Homes (Developments)
Limited (WPH Developments) and Hilbre Projects LLP.
WPH Building Services is a company limited by guarantee. Magenta Living is the sole
guarantor and in the event of the Company being wound up, the liability of Magenta Living is
limited to £1. Effective 1st April 2008 the trade, assets and all liabilities of WPH (Building
Services) Limited were transferred to the parent. The subsidiary has not traded during the
year and is dormant.
WPH (Developments) Limited was incorporated in December 2011 with the principal activity
being the construction of new properties for Magenta Living. WPH (Developments) Limited
commenced trading from April 2013.
Hilbre Projects is a registered LLP consisting of two partners with the primary purpose of the
development of residential properties for open market sale. The controlling partner is WPH
(Developments) Limited holding 60% of the capital invested. The second partner is Starfish
Commercial holding 40% of the capital invested. The LLP was incorporated on 18th
November 2016 and commenced trading in the 2017-18 financial year. On 30th June 2020
Starfish Limited the minority member of Hilbre Projects LLP, served a six-month notice of its
intention to exit the membership agreement. Should this actually occur at the end of the sixmonth notice period, WPH (Development) Limited would become liable for any losses
incurred in Hilbre Projects LLP. On 14th September 2020 the Board of Starfish Commercial
Limited informed the Board of Wirral Partnership Homes (Developments) Limited of its
intention to pass a special resolution to enter creditors’ voluntary liquidation. The six-month
notice to exit the membership agreement will continue to run through to 30 December 2020
and is more likely to lead to Starfish Commercial Limited exiting the membership agreement
given the most recent information provided.

The Group holds the following interest in the subsidiary undertakings of the group:
Class of
shares
Ordinary

WPH (Developments) Limited

Holding
100%

The aggregate of share capital and reserves as at 31st March 2020 and of the profit and loss
for the year ended on that date for the subsidiary undertakings were:

WPH (Developments) Limited

Aggregate of share
capital

Reserves

£
1

£’000
(449)

Profit /
(Loss)
£’000
(552)
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Capital contribution

Members
interests

Profit /
(Loss)

£’000
120

£’000
(1,505)

£’000
(1,270)

Hilbre Projects LLP

Investment in Subsidiary
At 1 April 2019
Additions

WPH Dev Co
£’000
10
-

Hilbre
£’000
120
-

Total
£’000
130
-

10

120

130

At 31 March 2020

17.

Investment in Joint Venture
Company
1 April 2019
Additions
At 31 March 2020
Group
1 April 2019
Additions
Share of profit retained by the joint
venture and available for distribution
At 31 March 2020

2020
£’000
90
90

2019
£’000
90
90

2020
£’000
202
467

2019
£’000
23
179

669

202

Bamboo Estates is a registered LLP in which the group has a 50% interest. The other party to
the venture is Torus62 Limited, another housing provider.

18.

Properties for sale
Group

Properties and land for outright sale
Work in Progress
Outright Sale - completed
Shared ownership – completed
Shared ownership – work in progress

Company

2020
£'000
11,332
839
552
1,986

2019
£'000
142
9,178
167
267

2020
£’000
2,579
552
1,986

2019
£’000
142
388
167
267

14,710

9,754

5,117

964

Work in progress represents the value of work performed on development schemes both for
Magenta Living (£2.6m) and Hilbre Projects (£8.7m).
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19.

Debtors
Group

Company

2020
£'000

2019
£'000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

3,308

2,863

3,308

2,863

Due within one year
Rent and service charges receivable
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful
rent and service charge debts

(594)

(618)

(594)

(618)

2,714

2,245

2,714

2,245

Trade debtors
Less: Provision for bad and doubtful
trade debts
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Amounts due from Group undertakings
– WPH (Developments) Limited
Amounts due from Group undertakings
– Hilbre Projects
Amounts due from related entities

2,879
(130)

1,094
(214)

2,740
(130)

834
(214)

Due within one year

319
728
-

240
593
-

242
728
-

216
593
94

-

-

-

9

-

62

-

62

6,510

4,020

6,294

3,839

-

-

8,629

8,920

Due after more than one year

The debt due after more one than year represents the loan made by Magenta Living to Wirral
Partnership Homes (Developments) Ltd for on-lending to Hilbre Projects LLP. The loan is
repayable by 31 January 2023 and interest is charged at a fixed rate of 6%.

20.

Cash at bank and in hand
Group

Cash at bank and in hand

2020
£'000

2019
£'000

Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000

5,962

9,630

5,173

9,077

The above bank balances includes a total of £951k (2019: £948k) held in respect of the
Community Fund. Further background regarding the Community Fund is given in note 2 to the
financial statements. All payments from the Community Fund have to be agreed by a Working
Group, which is comprised of an equal number of representatives from the Company and the
Council.
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21.

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group

Trade creditors
Rent and service charges received in advance
Deferred capital grants (note 23)
Other taxation and social security
Other creditors
Accruals and deferred income
Amounts due to related entities
Amount due to Group undertakings – WPH
(Developments) Limited

Company

2020

2019

2020

2019

£'000

£'000

£’000

£’000

1,344
2,039
267
610
1,221
7,798
-

813
1,547
84
563
993
7,311
56
-

732
2,039
267
603
782
5,651
906

578
1,547
84
563
993
6,418
-

13,279

11,367

10,980

10,183

The above accruals and deferred income balance includes £2,096k (2019: £2,592k) in
respect of the Community Fund (note 25).

22.

Creditors: amounts falling due after one year
Group

Debt
(note 24)
Deferred capital grants (note 23)
Minority Interest

Company

2020
£'000

2019
£'000

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

81,100
25,709
80

81,100
19,031
80

81,100
25,709
-

81,100
19,031
-

106,889

100,211

106,809

100,131
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23.

Deferred capital grants
Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
At 1 April
Grant received in year
Amortisation of capital grant
Released on disposal

19,116
7,220
(269)
(91)

13,368
6,065
(241)
(76)

At 31 March

25,976

19,116

The deferred income is included in the financial statements
as follows:
Amounts to be released within one year

£’000

£’000

267

84

25,709

19,032

25,976

19,116

Amounts to be released in more than one year

24.

Debt analysis
Group

In less than one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
After five years

Company

2020
£'000

2019
£'000

10,100
71,000

9,100
72,000

81,100

81,100

2020
£’000
10,100
71,000
81,100

2019
£’000
9,100
72,000
81,100

The bank loans are secured by way of a floating charge on the housing properties. See note
30 for further information on these balances. The bank loan consists of a variable rate
revolving credit facility and a turn facility of both fixed and variable rates. The weighted
average interest rate as at 31 March 2020 was 3.75%. The current loan facility expires and is
repayable by 31 March 2035.
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25.

Deferred income
Group & Company
2020
£’000

2019
£’000

At 1 April
Deferred income received in year
Utilised in year:
Wirral Borough Council
Magenta Living

2,592
2

4,164
1

At 31 March

2,096

(250)
(248)

The deferred income is included as follows:
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts falling due in more than one year

(750)
(823)
2,592

£’000
2,096
-

£’000
2,592
-

2,096

2,592

Deferred income relates to monies paid into the Community Fund and monies received by
Magenta to fund future revenue projects. Further background regarding the Community Fund
is given in note 2. Related balances to the Community Fund are shown within cash at bank
and in hand of £0.9m (2019: £0.9m). The remainder of the balance is shown within deferred
income payments received in advance.
The sums utilised in the year of £498k (2019: £1,573k), were used to fund projects
undertaken by Magenta Living and Wirral Borough Council.

26.

Employee Pension Schemes
Summary of Pension Liability
Scheme
SHPS
MPF

2020
£’000
(292)
(20,689)

2019
£’000
(628)
(24,140)

Total Pension Liability

(20,981)

(24,768)

Social Housing Pension Scheme (Group and Company)
The company participates in the scheme, a multi-employer scheme which provides benefits to
some 500 non-associated employers. The scheme is a defined benefit scheme in the UK.
The scheme is subject to the funding legislation outlined in the Pensions Act 2004 which
came into force on 30 December 2005. This, together with documents issued by the Pensions
Regulator and Technical Actuarial Standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council, set
out the framework for funding defined benefit occupational pension schemes in the UK.
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26.

Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Social Housing Pension Scheme (Group and Company)
The scheme is classified as a 'last-man standing arrangement'. Therefore the company is
potentially liable for other participating employers' obligations if those employers are unable to
meet their share of the scheme deficit following withdrawal from the scheme. Participating
employers are legally required to meet their share of the scheme deficit on an annuity
purchase basis on withdrawal from the scheme.

Present values of defined benefit obligation, fair value of assets and defined benefit asset
(liability)
31 March 2020
31 March 2019
(£’000s)
(£’000s)
Fair value of plan assets
1,855
1,712
Present value of defined benefit obligation
(2,147)
(2,340)
(Deficit) in plan
(292)
(628)
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation
Period ended Period ended
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
(£’000s)
(£’000s)
Defined benefit obligation at start of period
2,340
2,060
Current service cost
106
136
Expenses
4
3
Interest expense
57
54
Contributions by plan participants
36
41
Actuarial losses/ (gains) due to scheme experience
19
(10)
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in demographic
(20)
6
assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses due to changes in financial assumptions
(365)
180
Benefits paid and expenses
(30)
(130)
Defined benefit obligation at end of period

2,147

2,340
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Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Social Housing Pension Scheme (Group and Company)

Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the fair value of plan assets
Period ended Period ended
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
(£’000s)
(£’000s)
Fair value of plan assets at start of period
1,712
1,544
Interest income
42
41
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
(38)
81
interest income) – (loss)/gain
Contributions made by the employer
133
135
Contributions by plan participants
36
41
Benefits paid and expenses
(30)
(130)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period

1,855

1,712

The actual return on the plan assets (including any changes in share of assets) over the period ended
31 March 2020 was £4,000
Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive income (SOCI)
Period ended Period ended
31 March
31 March
2020
2019
(£’000s)
(£’000s)
Current service cost
106
136
Expenses
4
3
Net interest expense
15
13
Defined benefit costs recognised in statement of comprehensive
income (SOCI)

125

Defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income
Period
ended 31
March
2020
(£’000s)
Experience on plan assets (excluding amounts included in
(38)
net interest cost) – (loss)/gain
Experience gains and losses arising on the plan liabilities –
(19)
(loss)/gain
Effects of changes in the demographic assumptions
20
underlying the present value of the defined benefit
obligation – gain (loss)
Effects of changes in the financial assumptions underlying
365
the present value of the defined benefit obligation – gain
(loss)
Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income –
gain (loss)

328

152

Period ended
31 March 2019
(£’000s)
81
10
(6)

(180)

(95)
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Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Social Housing Pension Scheme (Group and Company)

Key assumptions

Discount rate
Inflation (RPI)
Inflation (CPI)
Salary Growth
Allowance for commutation of
pension for cash at retirement

31 March 2020
% per annum
2.32
2.50
1.50
2.50
75% of maximum allowance

31 March 2019
% per annum
2.38
3.23
2.23
3.23
75% of maximum allowance

The mortality assumptions adopted at 31 March 2020 imply the following life expectancies:
Life expectancy at
Previous Year
age 65
(Years)
(Years)
Male retiring in 2020
21.5
21.8
Female retiring in 2020
23.3
23.5
Male retiring in 2040
22.9
23.2
Female retiring in 2040
24.5
24.7
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Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Merseyside Pension Fund (MPF)
The Merseyside Pension Fund is a multi-employer scheme, administered by Wirral
Metropolitan Borough Council under the regulations governing the Local Government Pension
Scheme, a defined benefit scheme. The most recent formal actuarial valuation was completed
as at 31 March 2016.
The employers’ contributions to the Merseyside Pension Fund by the Group and Company for
the year ended 31 March 2020 were £1,743k (2019: £1,809k) at a contribution rate of 15.2%
of pensionable salaries. The employer’s contribution rate for the year ending 31 March 2021
has been set at 16.8%. Estimated employers’ contributions to the Merseyside Pension Fund
during the accounting period commencing 1 April 2020 are £763k.
Principal actuarial assumptions
The main financial assumptions used by the actuary in calculating the figures for FRS 102
(Retirement Benefits) were:
Merseyside Pension Fund

Discount rate
Rate of increase in salaries
Rate of increase in pensions
Inflation assumption - CPI

31 March
2020
% per annum
2.4
3.6
2.2
2.1

31 March
2019
% per annum
2.5
3.7
2.3
2.2

Mortality Assumptions
The post-retirement mortality assumptions adopted to value the benefit obligation at March
2019 and March 2020 are based on the S2PA CMI 2015 tables for both non-retired members
and current pensioners.

The assumed life expectations on retirement at age 65 are:
Life expectancy
Retiring today:
Males
Females
Retiring in 20 years:
Males
Females

2020
No. of years

2019
No. of years

20.9
24.0

22.2
25.0

22.5
25.9

25.2
27.9
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26.

Employee Pensions Schemes (continued)
Merseyside Pension Fund
Analysis of the amount charged to income and expenditure account – Group &
Company

Current service cost
Past service cost
Effect of curtailments or settlements
Administration expenses

2020
£’000
3,620
204
411
58

2019
£’000
3,568
1,216
173
60

Amount charged to operating costs

4,293

5,017

Net Interest

2020
£’000
(581)

2019
£’000
(411)

(581)

(411)

Amounts charged to interest payable and financing
Costs

Actuarial gain/(loss)

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

6,583

(4,422)
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26.

Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Merseyside Pension Fund
Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations: Group & Company

Opening defined benefit obligations
Current service cost
Interest cost
Members contributions
Past service cost
Actuarial (gains)/losses
Curtailment
Benefits/transfers paid

2020
£’000
127,518
3,620
3,162
771
204
(12,261)
411
(2,806)

2019
£’000
113,820
3,568
3,053
804
1,216
7,267
173
(2,383)

Closing defined benefit obligation

120,619

127,518

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

103,377

97,720

Actuarial (losses)/gains
Administration expenses
Employer contributions
Member contributions
Benefits / transfers paid

2,581
(5,678)

2,642
2,845

(58)
1,743
771
(2,806)

(60)
1,809
804
(2,383)

Closing fair value of plan assets

99,930

103,377

2020

2019

£’000

£’000

244

5,487

Changes in plan assets: Group & Company
Opening fair value of plan assets
Interest on plan assets

Actual return on scheme assets

Major categories of plan assets as a percentage of total plan assets: Group & Company
2020
2019
Equities
Government bonds
Other bonds
Property
Cash / liquidity
Other

41.2%
17.8%
11.0%
7.5%
4.0%
18.5%

39.3%
6.8%
22.8%
7.6%
5.4%
18.1%
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26.

Employee Pension Schemes (continued)
Merseyside Pension Fund
Sensitivity Analysis
Central +0.1% p.a. +0.1% p.a.
discount
inflation
rate

Liabilities
Assets
Deficit
Projected Service Cost for next
year
Projected Net Interest Cost for
next year

27.

£’000
120,619
(99,930)
20,689
3,331

£’000
118,479
(99,930)
18,549
3,240

£’000
122,798
(99,930)
22,868
3,426

487

454

540

+0.1% p.a.
1 year
pay increase in
growth
life
expectancy
£’000
£’000
121,014
123,875
(99,930)
(99,930)
21,084
23,945
3,331
3,435
497

566

Financial commitments
Capital expenditure commitments were as follows:
Capital expenditure
Expenditure contracted for but not provided in the accounts
Expenditure authorised by the Board, but not contracted

Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
12,739
17,402

13,373
22,631

30,141

36,004

The above commitments will be financed primarily through current cash balances and the
draw down under existing loan arrangements.
Operating leases
The total future minimum lease payments are as set out below. Lease payments relate to the
vehicle fleet.
Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Motor vehicles minimum lease payments:
Less than one year
350
350
350
760
One to five years
700

1,110

The total future minimum lease receipts in respect of properties leased to Bamboo Lettings
are set out below.
Group & Company
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Property minimum lease receipts:
Less than one year
460
240
One to five years

984

724

1,444

964
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28.

Contingent liabilities
There were no contingent liabilities at 31 March 2020.

29.

Net cash inflow from operating activities
2020
£’000
Surplus for the year

2019
£’000

(126)

8,433

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Revaluation of Investment Properties
Share of profit on Joint Venture
Increase in properties for sale
Increase in stock
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other debtors
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other creditors
Pension costs less contributions payable
Carrying amount of tangible fixed asset disposals
Release of grant on disposal

9,284
(256)
(467)
(1,183)
(62)
(339)
1,346
2,527
899
(91)

9,215
(4,753)
(179)
(2,338)
(35)
241
(589)
3,449
1,579
(77)

Adjustment for investing or financial activities
Proceeds from the sale of tangible fixed assets
Government grants utilised in the year
Interest payable
Interest receivable
Taxation paid

(3,706)
(269)
3,757
(220)
(17)

(3,395)
(318)
3,981
(22)
-

Net cash generated from operating activities

11,077

15,192

Adjustments for non-cash items:

30.

Financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
Other than short-term debtors, financial assets held are cash balances held as cash at bank.
They are sterling denominated and the amounts and interest rate profile at 31 March was:
Group

2020
£’000

2019
£’000

Floating rate

5,962

9,630

5,962

9,630

The floating rate financial assets attract interest at rates that vary with bank rates.
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30.

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial liabilities excluding trade creditors – interest rate risk profile
The Group’s financial liabilities are sterling denominated. The amounts and interest rate
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 March was:
2020
2019
£’000
£’000
Floating rate
39,295
30,650
Fixed rate
41,805
50,450
Total (note 24)

81,100

81,100

The fixed rate liabilities have been drawn down at the fixed rate of 5.4% (2019: 5.4%). The
loan is repayable between 2017 and 2035.
The floating rate financial liabilities bear interest rates based on the three month LIBOR plus a
margin.
Borrowing facilities
The Group has undrawn committed borrowing facilities. The facilities available at 31 March in
respect of which all conditions precedent had been met were as follows:

Expiring in one year or less
Expiring in more than one year but not more than two years
Expiring in more than two years

31.

2020
£’000
43,900

2019
£ ’000
43,900

43,900

43,900

Analysis of net debt
1 April
2019
£’000

Cash
Flow
£’000

31 March
2020
£’000

Cash at bank and in hand

9,630

(3,668)

5,962

Changes in cash

9,630

(3,668)

5,962

Loans

(81,100)

-

(81,100)

Changes in debt

(81,100)

-

(81,100)

Changes in net debt

(71,470)

(3,668)

(75,138)
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32.

Related parties
Of those Board Directors who served during the year only one was a tenant of Magenta
Living: Muriel Wilkinson. Rent arrear balances at 31 March 2020 were £16.08 (2019: £155).
The rent charged for the year in respect of the tenant Board directors totalled £4,961(2019:
£4,978), with the charge being made on normal commercial terms.
The Board also includes two elected members of Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council. The
members who served during the year were as follows:
Jeff Green
Steve Foulkes
None of the Board members who are councillors are able to use their position to their
advantage. Declarations of interest are taken at each Board meeting and connected parties
leave the meeting during relevant discussions/decisions.
Transactions with non-regulated entities
During the year the Group had intra group transactions with subsidiary WPH (Developments)
Limited, an unregulated entity, of £13,469k (2019: £5,366k) relating to housing property
design and build services. A management charge of £183k (2019: £144k) was made to WPH
(Developments) Limited which was calculated on a pro rata staff basis. The balance at the
year end due to Magenta Living was £786k being made up of investment of £120k and
intercompany debtor balance of £666k.
During the year the Group had intra group transactions with Hilbre Projects LLP, an
unregulated entity, of £80k (2019: £88k) relating to management and build services. During
the year Hilbre Projects LLP had intra group transactions with Starfish Commercial of £467k
(2019: £631k) relating to construction management services. The balances at the year-end
due to Magenta Living and Starfish Commercial were £0k (2019: £9k) and £0k (2019: £55k)
respectively.
Intra Group Interest charges
Intra group interest is charged by the company to its subsidiaries at an agreed commercial
rate. At present the only such agreement is in respect of a loan facility to a maximum of £20
million provided by Magenta Living to WPH (Developments) Limited for on-lending to Hilbre
Projects LLP. The loan is advanced in instalments to meet approved expenditure on
development for sale projects. Loan repayments are made as soon as sales receipts are
received. The balance at the year-end year end due to Magenta Living in respect of the loan
to WPH (Developments) was £9,656k (2019: £8,920k). The loan interest charged in the year
totalled £566k (2019: £477k). During the year WPH (Developments) Limited on-lent £736k
(2019: £4,620k) to Hilbre Projects LLP. The balance due from Hilbre Projects LLP to WPH
(Developments) in respect of the loan at the year end was £9,656k (2019: £8,920k).
A provision of £1,027k for the potential under-recovery of the outstanding loan provided from
Magenta Living to WPH (Developments) Limited for on-lending to Hilbre Projects LLP has
been made within the Magenta Living accounts. This provision takes into account the current
and projected performance of Hilbre Projects LLP in addition to the potential impact of the
COVID-19 pandemic on the net realisable (sales value) of the assets within the subsidiary.
Joint Venture
Magenta Living has an investment of £90k in Bamboo Estates (2019: £90k) and during the
year Magenta Living had intra group transactions of £388k (2019: £264k). During the year
Bamboo Estates had intra group transactions with Torus62 Limited of £462k (2019: £130k).
The balances at the year end due to Magenta Living and Torus62 Limited were £3k (2019:
£62k) and £131k (2019: £42k) respectively.
Disclosures in relation to key management personnel are included in note 10. There were no
other related party transactions with Board members.
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